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Dear Shareholders,

It is with my utmost honor to report to you the tremendous results our Company had during the
financial year 2023-24. Our profit after tax and payment to YCDC for the concession of Danyingon
Fruits, vegetables, and flowers wholesale market stands at (5.74) billion kyats, which is (114) %
more than last reported financial year. It is no small feet to achieve such an unprecedented profit
level. It is greatly contributed by the strong sales of shophouses at our Danyingon fruits, vegetable
and flower wholesale market, with (18.8) billions sold during the year and pre orders of (7.5)billions
to be delivered in next financial year. This contributed 77 % of our turnover, and (5.3) billions was
from our market operations income, which was also 15 % growth compared to last year.

Another substantial income stream is from overnight truck parking business. We have started to offer
overnight truck car parking inside our market from April 2022. It was a huge success due to our good
infrastructure we have laid down inside our market with bright lights and competent security staffs.
We have had 128,791 trucks over night parking since we started until March 2024, resulting in 7%
of market operations income and rank as 1st largest income source after market rental.

This year we have new income stream in our market which is our cold storage income which we have
started operations 200 tonne small coldstorage for our customers inside the market on September,
2023. Cold strorage business is one of our key future income drivers for our market as we have plan
to build a large industrial scale coldstroage to service large scale customers in the near future.

We have not only grown our income and profit but also grew our contribution to our community and
our stakeholders. We have donated and enhence corporate social resposibilities with 2 billions this
year compare to last year 1.2 billions to various causes.
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We have assisted our vendors in the Danyingone wholesale market with MSME Loans in partnership
with United Amara Bank (uab), AYA Bank and A Bank to ease their burden from outrageous loans
from informal channels. We have successfully coordinate for total loans from 3 banks of 2.6 billions
to 206 vendors of different sizes. This is a great deal helpful for our vendors to expand their operations
in our Market by opening more shops and increasing the variety and volume of produce they carry.
I would like to thank each and every member of the Banks from the Bank Chairmans, CEOs and their
management teams, all the way to the clerk who made this possible and smooth in a very short time.

We have been putting our utmost effort to meet and excel our commitment on United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals. Renewable Solar energy generation power pilot has been successful
implementing generating 110 MWH since its installation in April 2023 up to March 2024. We have
reduced our carbon emissions by 65.16 tonnes from our Renewable energy solar pilot project. After
careful evaluation from the results of the pilot project, MAEX will continue to invest in not only
renewable solar energy but also in Battery Energy Storage System to be able to stored solar energy
during the night and minimize our diesel consumption from running generators.

The company initially implemented the project by starting with shares valued at 1000 kyats from the
original shareholders. Since our YSX listing on 3.7.2023, I am delighted that our share price closing
on 25.6.2024 date is 3750 kyats, which is 208 % higher than our listed price, 1800 kyats. We are
also the 1st highest traded volume among 8 listed companies, with 1,008,676 shares worth 1.9
billions kyats traded till 22.7.2024. We have frequently and timely announce all our disclosures and
keep our shareholders well informed about the progress of our business. I believe this has strengthened
the trust, demand and value appreciation in our shares.

The future of MAEX is bright with two additional market buildings being constructed in this financial
year, out of which market building 5 is completed and 100% all of stall in it is leased out was open
on 1st May. Market building 5 has stores and it is specifically for larger wholesale shops selling
potatoe, onion, chilli, rice and cooking oil. Second market building 7 also almost completed and
sceduled to open by October.

MAEX has also secure a total of approximately 39 acres in the Heho, Bawsaing/Bawnin, and Kyone
regions of Southern Shan State to build collector markets which are close to the farming source in
Southern Shan state. This will create a direct linkage with our wholesalers in our market with the
growers and producers in Southern Shan. We will start construction of these markets towards the
end of the year. We have plan to set up such kind of collector markets all over Myanmar where there
is specialized producers for fruits, vegetables and agri commodities.

We would like to express our deepest gratitude for the hard work and leadership of our company
directors. We are also sincerely thankful to our shareholders who have continuously supported our
company with their trust. Because of the confidence our shareholders have in the company, we are
confident that we will continue to achieve success in the coming years. Additionally, we extend our
thanks to the supporting partner organizations, buyers, investors, and all company employees and
workers who have contributed to our success. We firmly believe that through our collective efforts,
we will achieve continuous and sustainable growth in the long term.
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Annual Benefits to Yangon City Development Committee

Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited is a Public-Private Partnership (PPP) project with the
Yangon City Development Committee (YCDC). As part of this collaboration, the company annually provides
25% of its annual profit from business operations to the YCDC.

Ks In Million

SR Financial Year Net Profit Before Tax YCDC Profit Portion

1 2016-2017 132.59 | 33.15

2 2017-2018 586.69 : 146.57

3 2018-2019 587.24 146.83

4 2019 (6mths) 100.82 | 25.20

5 2015-2020 507.48 130.06

6 2020-2021 3,031.27 ' 766.14

7 2021-2022(6mths) 1,030.25 263.87

8 2022-2023 4,605.62 1,159.80

9 2023-2024 9,229.72 2,309.01

Total 19,812 j' 4,981
Net Profit Before Tax and YCDC Profit Portion
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In addition, a total of 40 buildings, comprising 28 three-story
buildings and 12 four-story buildings, are to be handed over to the
YCDC proportionally.

Out of these 40 buildings, 4 three-story buildings and 4 four-story
buildings were transferred to the YCDC during the 2019-2020
financial year. Furthermore, 10 three-story building completed in the
2023-2024 financial year was also handed over to the YCDC.
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Grand Opening Ceremony with Lucky
Draw for New Market Building (5)

The new grocery market building within the Danyingone
Wholesale Market, specializing in groceries such as
rice, oil, dried chilies, onions, garlic, potatoes, ginger,
and various types of peas, officially opened on May 1,
2024. The market features 408 shops, each measuring
5 feet by 16 feet.To commemorate the opening of
Market No. 5, MAEX Public Co., Ltd., in collaboration
with the vendors, will host a special Lucky Draw event
from May 1 to May 31. Customers who spend 50,000
Kyats or more will be eligible to participate in the Lucky
Draw, which offers over 200 prizes, including tricycles
and other items. This special shopping program is
designed to enhance the shopping experience and
celebrate the new market's launch.

On June 1, 2024, raffle tickets were drawn to
commemorate the opening of the grocery wholesale
market, and prizes were awarded to the lucky winners
of the shopping raffle.
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Activities of the Year
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“"Disclosure, Corporate Governance, Related Party
Transactions, Pre-Listing Board and YSX Listing Experience
Seminar" for Public Companies Organized by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Myanmar: Explanation of Listing
Experiences by U Thurane Aung, Director of Myanmar Agro
Exchange Public Company Limited” (11.8.2023)
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The Second (2022-2025) Annual Meeting of the Myanmar
Corn Industrial Association (29.7.2023)

The second (2022-2025) annual meeting of the Myanmar
Corn Industrial Association was held in Taunggyi City on
Saturday, July 29, 2023. At the meeting, Myanmar Agro
Exchange Public Co., Ltd. supported as the Gold Sponsor and
provided information about the Danyingone wholesale market
in Insein Township, Yangon Region, to entrepreneurs from
across Myanmar who attended the event in Taunggyi.
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Attending the World Union of Wholesale Markets (WUWM)
conference

From May 15 to 17, 2024, the World Union of Wholesale
Markets (WUWM) conference was held in Bangkok,
Thailand, hosted by TalaadThai, a prominent wholesale
market in the country.

The Chairman of the Management Committee of MAEX,
Director U Thurane Aung, attended the WUWM Bangkok
2024 conference. The objective was to explore new market
opportunities for the Danyingone Wholesale Market and to
learn about new technologies to further improve operations.
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AGRi-Adventure Myanmar to Thailand
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AGRIi-Adventure Myanmar to Thailand

To continuously develop the economic, social, and environmental protection skills of farmers, vegetable
growers, fruit producers, horticulturists, and related stakeholders in Myanmar, the Real Youth Initiative
implemented the "AGRi-Adventure Myanmar to Thailand" program. This event was held on April 4 and 5,
2024, with the support of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Co., Ltd (MAEX) (Danyingone Wholesale Market)
and the Grow Future Project as partners.

The Seminar included the following topics:

1.

2.

Basic personal and shop hygiene for shopkeepers.
Fundamental marketing skills for effective communication with customers and buyers.
Essential online application usage for market transactions.

Information on financial scams and preparation strategies to avoid financial difficulties
during retirement.

Discussions on pesticides, fertilizers, chemical residues, and their impact on human health
and the environment.
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Signing Ceremony of Memorandum of Understanding between MAEX and AYA & UAB Bank for MSME Loans
for Danyingone Wholesale Market Vendors (18.10.2023)

MAEX , AYA and Uab Bank celebrated a "memorandum of understanding signing ceremony" on October 18,
2023, at Danyingone Wholesale Market, marking their commitment to providing loans to small and medium
enterprises (MSME) vendors operating within the market, with the aim of supporting the growth and
development of businesses
in our market.

Until March 31, 2024, we
collaborated with AYA
Bank , UAB Bank and A
Bank to support a total of
206 vendors, providing
2.6 billions Kyats, enabling
vendors in the Danyingone
wholesale  market to
expand their businesses,
increase investments, and
boost income.
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Expanding Financial Access: A Bank MSME Micro Loans for Danyingone Wholesale Market Vendors
(15.2.2024)

On February 15, 2024, Ayeyarwaddy Farmers Development Bank Limited (referred to as A Bank) provided
MSME Micro Loans to vendors of the Danyingone Wholesale Market located in Insein Township.

MAEX

PARTNERSHIP SIGNING
CEREMONY
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MAEX as Main Sponsor at “the Largest Real Estate and Luxury Condominium Trade Show” at Yangon
Convention Center, Promoting Shop House and Medium Wholesale at Danyingone Wholesale Market: An
Activitial Photo (18.8.2023 to 20.8.2023)
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Documentary Photos of MAEX's Participation and Sales Promotion at “15th Myanmar's Largest Real Estate
and Car Exhibition" (21.10.2023 - 22.10.2023)

“Little Yangon Property Supermarket” MAEX ¢ dlo€q) saeepCgEont[gs ©0odonsienodogp:
(0©.09. JO JQ - 9£-02. JO J?)

Documentary Photos of MAEX's Participation and Sales Promotion at “Little Yangon Property Supermarket”
(18.11.2023 - 19.11.2023)

“Mandalay Agro-Tech Expo” MAEX ¢ dlo&q) saeepEigéon(gls 9odonbiencdogp:
(09.00. JO J - 9£-09. JO D)

Documentary Photos of MAEX's Participation and Sales Promotion at “Mandalay Agro-Tech Expo”
(8.12.2023 - 10.12.2023)
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Documentary Photos of MAEX's Participation and Sales Promotion at “"YRYEA Expo 2024"
(23.2.2024~ 25.2.2024)

“International Real Estate and Property Expo 2024” o3& MAEX ¢ dloCq) saeepCsgEontgt:
[od o
§0505: @20504p: (JB-9-JOUG = 90-9-J0J5)
Documentary Photos of MAEX's Participation and Sales Promotion at “International Real Estate and
Property Expo 2024" (29.3.2024-31.3.2024)
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Annual Flow of Goods by Region
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A Were Taw Online Groceries
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MAEX has started e-commerce businesses selling groceries
online with the name of Awere Taw in March 2020, taking the
opportunity during Covid -19 first wave. Meat, Fruit, Vegetable,
Basic foodstuffs from Danyingone Wholesale Market can be
ordered using the Awere Taw Facebook Page, Awere Taw
website & application and are being delivered door to door in
32 townships in Yangon.

From August 2020, the Awere Taw application was rolled out
to a wider range of users via mobile phones, and from April
2022, the new AWere Taw application will be available for pre-
order with new features to make it easier for online customers

to use.

COMPANY PROGRESS
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A total of 200 large-scale wholesale trading centers/offices/residences, comprising three-story and four-story
buildings, will be constructed in the Danyingone Wholesale Market. Up until the 2023-2024 financial year, a total

of 123 buildings have been constructed. Among these, 73 buildings have been completed, 85 have been sold,
and there are 12 buildings that are pre-sold.

Among the sold buildings, some are being opened and utilized as banks, agricultural input supply centers, and

event halls.
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Makert Building (1) Seasonal Fruits Market

0.G. Jo P §056503¢ 6gpd) (0) 320382 epaB0gadm$ c0daB:eepliqon (09) Sio aBEaS: (ge) 0§t gCapdaepCqd[S:
00.9. 0 JG qodes03€ 3CefigCandeapl:qon (o Jp) Sio aBEas: (558) 082 B o3gCaqpaqironddloogd

On April 1, 2023, there are only 13 seasonal fruit sellers opened a total of 59 stalls in Market Building 1. By March 31,
2024, the number of shops increased significantly, with 129 seller and a total of 545 stalls.
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Within Market Building 2, farmers selling vegetables and horticultural products are establishing day and night shift

stalls as well as monthly rental stalls. At the beginning of the financial year on April 1, 2023, 542 stalls were opened
and operated by 168 day-night shift sellers. By the end of the financial year on March 31, 2024, the number of these
stalls increased to 594, managed by 181 sellers. Additionally, at the beginning of the financial year, 2,508 monthly
rental stalls were opened by 507 vendors, and by the end of the financial year, the number of monthly rental stalls
increased to 2,633, operated by 891 vendors.
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At the beginning of the financial year on April 1, 2023, 1,120 shops were opened and operated by 435 sellers of various
goods in Market Building 3. Additionally, all shop spaces in Market Building 3 have been fully leased.
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Within Market Building 4, seasonal fruit and kitchenware vendors are establishing day and night shift stalls as well as
monthly rental stalls. At the beginning of the financial year on April 1, 2023, 549 stalls were opened and operated by
169 day-night shift sellers. By the end of the
financial year on March 31, 2024, the number
of these stalls increased to 326, managed by
187 sellers. Additionally, at the beginning of
the financial year, 411 monthly rental stalls
were opened by 154 vendors, and by the end
of the financial year, the number of monthly
rental stalls increased to 767, operated by

291 vendors.
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Market Building (5)
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The new grocery market building within the Danyingone

Wholesale Market, specializing in groceries such as
rice, oil, dried chilies, onions, garlic, potatoes, ginger,
and various types of peas, officially opened on May 1,
2024. This new market features 408 shops, each
measuring 5 feet by 16 feet operated by 100 venders.
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Company History and Objective

Our company, MAEX, was established on September
14, 2015, after Dagon International Ltd. won the
tender to develop, construct, and manage New
Danyingone Wholesale Market as a Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) model with Yangon City Development
Committee (YCDC), with a commitment in the tender
to establish a public company to carry out the business
with Dagon International Ltd. holding 45% of the
shares to start with and allowing the public to hold
shares in the newly formed company. Dagon
International Ltd. is the flagship company of the Dagon
Group of Companies. Dagon Group of Companies is
one of the most highly regarded and diversified groups
in Myanmar. Dagon Company started its business in
1990 as a trading company and now operates as a
group of companies in various sectors, which include
agriculture, property development and construction,
hospitality management, retail and distribution,
manufacturing, automobiles, food, logistics, and
petroleum.

On March 22, 2016, the Yangon City Development
Committee and MAEX signed an agreement on the
implementation of the Insein Township Danyingone
Fruit and Vegetable and Horticulture Wholesale Market.

MAEX was permitted to IPO as an unlisted public
company by SECM on January 11, 2017.

On September 9, 2017, the Myanmar Investment
Commission (MIC) approved the construction and
implementation of Danyingone Wholesale market was
granted.

On January 30, 2018, the Grand Opening Ceremony of
Phase (1) Danyingone Wholesale was held, and now
there are 1724 wholesalers and retailers in the market.
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O?%J(ﬁ?cﬁoﬁsqu Company Milestone

2024

1 May
Open Market Building 5
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Open Market Building 4
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2018

30 January
Grand Opening Ceremony
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6 March
Ground breaking Ceremony

22 March
MAEX & YCDC Agreement
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2023

3 July YSX Listing Ceremony
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2019

21 June

Closing old Danyingone Market and moving to new
Danyingone Wholesale Market
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2017

11 January
IPO approved on SECM

9 August
MIC approval
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2015

14 September
Estiblish Public Company
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Business Model of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited

Key Partner Key Activities Value Proposition Customer Relationships

e Farmers e Real Estate e Satisfying the consumer e The tenant
e Wholesaler e Market Operator to reach harm free fresh
o Trader products with reasonable | o The shop house and
e Supplier price commercial building buyer | Customer Segments
e Other Retailers e Fulfilling the nutritional e Local farmers,
needs with healthy fresh
Key Resources vegetables, fruits without wholesaler

any chemical residue that O PIESE EEEREE

e Location
can harm to consumers’ Engagement Channels * Restaurant

e Working Capital

e Modern Trade
e Manpower healt.h. . e Meeting Distributors
e Time e Exotic Fruits- Upper Class e Social Media
e Basic Fruit and .
e Advertising
vegetables- Middle Class
Cost Structure Revenue Streams

o )
e Infrastructure The rental income

e Sale of shop house and commercial building
e Utilities

e Construction Cost

e Safety and health

e Cost of maintenance e Parking

e Service Fees

SUPPLY CHAIN

0005096091 803§ kop1 [gaBorodepbop o€ogsap geandionSonan

Manufacture / Grower / Processor Importer Collector

)

\e'Z,

- .’

N

®\7
MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC CO., LTD.
e ooFSS(E165: ovreaBiess -]
(8¢ maiofs2c3(B) g g e mREazn

Danyingone
Fruit & Vegetables
Wholesale Market

M %
0088:q€:0050909 cocdedlcoaHr8a38 &erco05c8a8E [ 028858 GeS0op
Individual Consumer Modern Retailer Traditional Retailer o%ewpﬁﬁ DO Exporters

Food Service
opoBepbay
Value added Food
Manufacture Industries
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Services and Products of the Company

Our Company’s primary business is the Danyingone Wholesale Market, specializing in creating a marketplace for
distributing fruits, vegetables, meat, fish and flowers. The Danyingone Wholesale Market aims to target the development
of underdeveloped sector and improvement of price predictability and farmers’ income. The objective of the investment
will not only be making a profit but also building links between farmers, consumers, local traders and exporters.
Through our business we wish to promote the living standard of farmers and others dependent on agriculture but also
create value added agriculture products and industry.

Danyingone Wholesale Market will be the first wholesale market to be developed by our Company. It will be a diverse
cluster of businesses involved in wholesale trading, fresh fruit and vegetable retailing, business service providers. The
site as a whole plays a critical role in the production of fresh fruits, vegetables, fish, meat and flowers and it will also
contribute to the state’s and the nation’s economy and have a positive impact on local communities and families.
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VISION, MISSION, VALUES

The Board of Directors is committed to ensuring that our organization's vision and mission remain relevant
and aligned with our strategic objectives. In line with this commitment, the Board has established a periodic
review process. We are pleased to report that the Board has conducted a thorough review and approved our
vision and mission statements at least once within the last five years. This review ensures that our guiding
principles continue to reflect our values and goals, steering the organization towards sustained growth and
success.

Our VISION

e To become the leading fresh food wholesale market and supply chain company in
Myanmar, known for industry leadership, innovation, convenience, quality, and
excellence.

e To develop Myanmar's agriculture and horticulture industries and alleviate poverty
among farmers, growers, and sellers.

Our MISSION

e To provide state-of-the-art infrastructure and services, creating a world-class
distribution and marketing hub for fresh produce, including fruits, vegetables,
flowers, and value-added food products.

Our VALUES
e CUSTOMER FOCUS

Recognize the importance of customers' needs and goals to our success.

Collaborate with market users to manage assets, meet needs, and support
business growth.

e EMPLOYEE AS COMPANY’S ASSET
Provide a safe, healthy workplace, adhering to international standards.

Foster open communication and collaboration between employees and
management.

Treat employees with respect and dignity, valuing equality and diversity.

Encourage innovation to enhance business value.

e SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Conduct business efficiently to maximize shareholder value.

« STAKEHOLDER VALUE

Integrate social, cultural, and political considerations into business activities.
Acknowledge the legitimate interests of all stakeholders.
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GOALS & STRATEGY

To achieve our goals, we focus on:

Supporting Producers: Provide accurate market information to farmers, who make up 70%
of the population, improving their market access and income.

Consumer Health: Ensure the availability of fresh, chemical-free products at reasonable
prices.

Waste Reduction: Minimize production waste to benefit both producers and buyers
financially.

Market Coordination: Balance demand and supply to establish an efficient retail and
wholesale distribution system.

Job Creation: Increase employment opportunities in the agriculture sector.

Economic Growth: Boost GDP by enhancing the export quantity and value of agricultural
products.

All departments are responsible for developing stakeholder value creation activities, ensuring
informed, consultative, and collaborative decision-making processes.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Stakeholders Engagement

Our stakeholders are employees, customers, suppliers, investors, organization and other entities that can affect

or be affected by our activities and products. Maintaining an open dialog with our stakeholders is essential to
understanding their interests and expectations. MAEX performs specific actions depending on its activity size,
location and culture and all sites have regular exchanges with local stakeholders such as local authorities.

Investors & analysts

Investors & Analysis
Key Expectations

Customer

Customers Key Expectations

e FEthics & Compliance
e (Governance

e Quality

Engagement Channels

Trade show

Conventions, technical seminars
Audits and sites visits

Joint seminars, conferences,
techno days, workshops

e Meetings

Local Partner

Local Key Expectations

e Ethics & Compliance
e Labor and human right
e Waste & Effluent

Engagement Channels

Patnerships

Conferences, conventions, meetings
Sites visits

Donations, training, volunteering,
local initiatives

Industry associations

Industry Associations
Key Expectations

e Governances

e Ethics & Compliance
e Diversity & Inclusion
e Mraket Information

Engagement Channels

Health & Safety
Governance

Quality

Engagement Channels

Investors and analysis day
Annual reports

Audits and sites visits
Extra-financial questionnaires

Employees Key Expectations

Quality
Health & Safety
Ethics & Compliance

Engagement Channels

Seminars, conferences, forums

Online meetings

Recognition, awards, contests
Intranet, internet, news, emails, viedos
Training workshops

Employee survey

Application week

Suppliers Key Expectations

e Health & Safety
e Ethics & Compliance
e Labor and human right

Engagement Channels

Metting

Technological roadshow
Audits and sites visits
Extra-financial questionnaires

Media Key Expectations

Company Information
New service and progress
Innovation

Chemicals

Engagement Channels

e Conferences, conventions, meetings
e Press release

National & Local Authorities

National & Local Authorities

Key Expectations
e Quality

e Ethic & Complicance
e Health & Safety

Engagement Channels

e Patnerships with municipalities
e Membership in public-private e Meeting, conferences, seminars
partnershps, international e Annual reports
association e Site visits

e Meeting, conferences, seminars
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Corporate Governance Objectives

MAEX intends to introduce and practice Coporate Policies, Governance Principle and Guidelines
The key objectives are;

1. to achieve sustainable business growth and investor confidence

2. to create market confidence and business integrity & ethics

3. to ensure stable access to equity capital and to support capital formation and allocation

4

. to improve MAEX’s Good Coporate Governance System in line with international best practices and to rise
awareness on the crucial role of Good Coporate Governance within MAEX's Board, staff force and to encourage
each and every member to practice and improve his or her role towards the long-term success and improved
business performance of MAEX.

5. to improve decision- making processes, such as envorimental, anticorruption and bribery,
human rights and social matters.
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MAEX's Corporate Governance adherence to the
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Ji poest cpdadipdsobigpizas Groin:cdodsoal

o 8:5{):661:(\380%: a@&ep me@g@qéqu§§ 1. Leadership

()Q|§005qpsl 2. Legal and Regulatory Compliance
61 odeocdulgoieordoicd [Bio3tess gSon 3. Business Practices and Ethics

ecquﬂ@& &39%%. 4. Monitoring, Oversight and Risk Management
QL Qé‘ggeeoo&p_s Ség%ﬁ. 5. Performance Management
G sgqlogsgmogqu 09056(95@:)3@&, :DOO&% 6. Disclosure, Reporting and Transparency

oo€[yfgtssé gEaoligComgdacs 7. Stakeholder Engagement and Communication
@ w0BEapepist Becp,sondogablglioloond

MAEX ol aBeepodeomn eond3§odspdq|des;

26[gd32g/054s [§0Sloopd

Leadership
Stakeholder

Engagement and
Communication

Legal &
Regulatory
Compliance

Business
Practices and
Ethics

Disclosure,

Reporting
and

Transparency

Performance Monitoring,
Management Oversight & Risk
Management

Basics Elements of Effective Corporate Governance by MAEX
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The Myanmar Centre for Responsible Business is an initiative to encourage responsible business activities
throughout MyanmarThe Centre is a joint initiative of the Institute for Human Rights and Business (IHRB)
and the Danish Institute for Human Rights (DIHR). Starts from the first-time report 2014 to 2020, Pwint Thit
Sa conducted 7 reports and the report was not conducted in 2017.The 2022 Pwint Thit Sa Report assesses
information disclosure on the corporate websites of 271 large Myanmar companies. Pwint Thit Sa remains
the most extensive public report published about the state of corporate disclosure (CD) in Myanmar.

MAEX had been ranked 25th in 2018 due to its commitment to transparency in good governance since its
inception in 2018 MCRB assesses information disclosure on the corporate website of 182 large Myanmar
companies includeing listed and unlisted public companies

Due to our continuous improvement and commitment to transparency and good govermment, we have been
ranked 14th out of 248 companies and 3rd most transparent company in the list of non-listed companies in
2019. In 2020, we have been ranked 11th out of 260 companies and 1st most transparent company in the
list of non-listed companies. In the list of the top most transparent companies in the 2022 Pwint Thit Sa
Report, Myanmar Agro Exchange Company Limited has moved up to 10™ place out of 271 companies.

MAEX Rank in Pwint Thit Sa Report

Myanmar Agro Exchange (MAEX) 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2022
Rank ( Among non- listed companies) - 3 1 1
Rank (Among over 200 companies) 25 14 11 10

Corporate Profile 71% 46% 85% 76%

Corporate Governance 6% 20% 64% 75%

Criteria Sustainability Management 0% 31% 44% 51%
Communication 20% = = =

Reporting 0% 21% 39% 50%

Score 12% 28% 52% 60%
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Management
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Internal Audit
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Operation
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U Win Aung is the Non- Executive Chairman of MAEX. U
Win Aung founded and continues as the Chairman of
the Dagon Group of Companies since its establishment
in 1990. Since 1993, Dagon Group of Companies has
successfully implemented property development
projects. Dagon Group of Companies engages in wide
range of business in general trading, timber business,
residential and commercial development such as
shopping malls, hotel development, integrated
agricultural development, value added food industry,
logistics and distribution, automobile distribution,

petroleum distribution, and in other business sectors.

U Win Aung is currently the Chairman of Myanmar
Thilawa SEZ Public Holdings Public Co., Ltd. He is one of
the initiators and the lead negotiator & founder

Chairman for Myanmar Private Sector’s involvement in

the implementation of the Thilawa SEZ jointly with the
Japanese investors, to create investment opportunities
for Myanmar Citizens.

U Win Aung is acting as the Chairman of Myanmar
Japan Thilawa Development Ltd (MJTD), a Myanmar-
Japan joint venture company which was established for
the implementation and acceleration for the investors of
the Thilawa Special Economic Zone.

He is also the Chairman and one of the Promoters of
Golden Land East Asia Development Ltd. (GLAD), a
public company engaged in general trading and
investment.

U Win Aung served as President of UMFCCI from 2011
to 2016, Chairman of ASEAN Business Advisory Council
(ABAC) from 2013 to 2014 & Chairman of Greater
Mekong Sub-region Business Forum (GMS-BF) from
2002 - 2004 and 2012 - 2014. He was also one of the
members of the National Economic and Social Advisory
Council ("NESAC") and UN-ESCAP Advisory Council.U
Win Aung has been serving as Chariman of MAEX since
2015.
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U Sit Lwin holds the position of Non-Executive Vice Chairman within our company.
With extensive expertise in the gold commodity trading sector, he established
Moe Ma Kha Gold & Jewelry, a market-leading gold jewellery business, in 1996.
Over the past 20 years, he has effectively managed a nationwide distribution
network specializing in the manufacture and wholesale of gold jewellery.
Additionally, he held a significant role as a committee member within the Yangon
Gold Association.

Furthermore, U Sit Lwin is the founder of Willow Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd,
which strategically invests in various sectors including hotels and tourism,
commodity trading, and infrastructure businesses such as Myanmar Thilawa SEZ
holdings.

In 1981, he earned a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the Yangon Institute of
Economics. Since 2015, he has served as the Vice Chairman of MAEX.
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U Min Sein serves as our company's Non-Executive Director and is a member of
the audit committee. Additionally, he holds a directorial position at Golden Land
East Asia Development Ltd (GLAD). He previously served as a director at First
Private Bank Ltd. for three years and played a pivotal role in establishing the
Hindatha Bank Branch of First Private Bank Ltd.

U Min Sein is actively involved in various business sectors, including operating Let
Saung Mon Mini Markets in Hinthada City, trading seasonal fruits, running a
brewery in Kyaung Kone City, operating Microfinance and Motels at Chaung Tha
Beach, managing Mobile Top Up Card Distribution Services, and overseeing City
View Real Estate and Property Services in Yangon. He graduated from Yangon
Workers' College with a B.A. in Philosophy in 1977.

He has been serving as a director at MAEX since 2015.
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Daw Yan Lin serves as a Non-Executive Director and a Management Committee
member at MAEX. Additionally, she holds a directorial position at Golden Land
East Asia Development Ltd. Furthermore, she is the managing director of Soen
Lwin Company Limited, which specializes in the distribution and sale of textiles.
She graduated from the University of Mandalay with a degree in History.

Daw Yan Lin has held the position of director at MAEX since 2015.

B:60008:0082005 q$m98[§|,.6005 0pboComumegEendecdl eergPgRse 30300
P56 0268{gdAaopd Joo, J 95605E B.A ([gSenen) [5¢ 33,.939000001 006we0sd
g€ opEo ¢ J00Gesd A 0x00§006:eemnERBH JooG 950603C codueodde
Scdoem908[gE  =o[G6:00:099A0p5N J00GRsde  j00GsdAB  gS0p§ge00d
0p50Ea00006EEEDE0dI 0005005GEES! 00508:07C38:038:e65E
20§ E:665505$0309E1 CLAHEENHGSE| 32e0E[gE 000§008:6800EF[ VD
o3¢ GoIqPiPsS g030OGRSe|r 320E[yE omo§coGieaotagdolaopd
Bie0008:0080000 MAEXET 3096800C00p0deomn 0godaudeomn S§edomaenjyd
(J0o8) 9560 000E0b:e0E 0§ AloopdI

U Thaung Tin is the Deputy Department Head, Markets Department of the
Yangon City Development Committee (YCDC). He holds a Bachelor of Arts (B.A)
degree in Myanmar Literature. He served in the Military from 1991 to 2004 and
in 2004, he retired as Major. From 2004 to 2014, he served as the assistant
department head in the production department, Environmental Conservation

department and Sanitation department.As of now, he is the Deputy Department
Head of the Markets Department.

U Thaung Tin has been serving as a Non- Executive Independent Director of
MAEX since 2015.
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U Thurane Aung has been a Non-Executive Director of MAEX and also appointed
as chairman of Management Committee of the company. His diversify experiences
came from more than 17 years of service in Dagon Group, which is one of the
leading conglomerates in Myanmar with diversified businesses in sectors that
include property development and construction, hospitality, timber, agriculture,
commodity trading, plantation, retail and distribution, petroleum, automobile and
food processing.

He also contribute much of his time for the development of the different business
sectors he is in by joining the Executive Committee Member of Myanmar
Construction Entrepreneur Association (MCEA), Vice-President of Yangon Region
Young Entrepreneur Association (YRYEA). He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honors)
in Business Information Management & Finance, which he obtained from the
University of Westminster, United Kingdom in 2004. He is also a winner of the
esteemed title of “Asia’s Most Admirable Young Leaders” at the prestigiouos Asia
Corporate Excellence & Sustainability Awards (ACES) 2021.



2023-2024

MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE

D§:p:C

U Phone Phone

Naing

Director

B:on§:008:8C2005 MAEX 3096800E00podeom 3§050moddigd[d: oot
605003208 08cpd:  [gdCloopdi 292000 s0ScrgaBgpizpdect  [g&[gjees:
cvcseel B:ee00CppS[ogrtee;e): 020§ 0066800805000 mrSogudgandes:
dp omcolopleter pbapRatipafidecs exapiopapisii Baadqodapist
3260009029qP:0d BGE:5C el aodSE[GE: 2603 ZTdjgP:od vresorEandl
200

Global Sky Company o3 oop5econE[gEi{gE opell Bxgnieapapdesiand qos/ o3
§E&aB0 0oadudqpdongglieqeod: 0godiqps Brod3ESEEe cpadimSogodigps
aB&:8CE0 20038258 1nE:aB:00C:god IEgPLILOMGP: BudSESE TGS
02:60mOpEsE  megPuovomgpist  [gpdogt  80d§papodapboopd
02260000507 EGP:FaAd 03:q),006680EF2001

292005 6o060390aNqdgE 8@a3.03 ee§msgpdeconter 33c8§i5god
505 (Tllinois )i c0:05&a005 (Galesburg) § 65086 o236 (Knox College) © q§3

200

B:on§:0n8:8C005 MAEX il dfoSomepaniad (Joog) 95060 00oCcobieemne
aqle5§o0pd

U Phone Phone Naing is a Non-Executive Director of our Company. He currently
serves as the Managing Director of the distribution arm of Dagon Group and
brings valuable experience in the trading business. He brings extensive experience
in recognizing and understanding consumers' needs and preferences, acquired

through years of working in the industry.

Through the Global Sky Company, he has expanded the business portfolio into
personal hygiene products (from Japan/Thailand), personal care products (from
the Philippines), fruits and vegetable drinks (from Thailand), and food and
beverage products (from the Philippines/US), as well as locally grown and

manufactured food.

He completed his BA in Economics from Knox College, Galesburg, Illinois, United
States.

U Phone Phone Naing has been serving as a director of MAEX since 2015.
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Daw Aye Aye Aung has been serving as a Non-Executive Director of our Company, as well as a member of the Remuneration
and Management Committee.

Daw Aye Aye Aung holds a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering in Electronics and is a certified Professional Engineer (P.E)
issued by the Myanmar Engineering Council. In 2014, she also received the ASEAN ENGINEER Certificate issued by the AFEO
Governing Board in Brunei. Additionally, she holds an M.B.A from the University of Economics (Yangon) obtained in 2012.
She joined Asia World Co., Ltd. in 1995 and held the position of Director of Asia World Industries until 2009, overseeing
operations such as the PP Woven Bag Factory and the Myanmar Paper Mill Factory.

Currently, she serves as the Managing Director of Asia Mega Link Co., Ltd. and as the Director of Asia Mega Link Services
Co., Ltd. Since 2009, she has been actively involved in IT-related businesses, including the installation, implementation, and
maintenance of Mobile hubs, Telecommunications Centers, Fiber Optics cables, and the manufacturing and distribution of
phone bill top-up cards. Additionally, she is an Executive Committee member in the IT sector of the Yangon International
Airport and serves as a director of Yatanarpon Teleport Public Co., Ltd.

The companies she is involved in participate in various businesses, including Manufacturing and Trading, IT-related businesses
such as installation, implementation, and maintenance of Mobile hubs, Telecommunications Centers, and Fiber Optics cables,
as well as the manufacturing and distribution of phone bill top-up cards. They also engage in Telephone and Mobile network
services, IT-related development projects in the Yangon International Airport, technological advancements in airports, ports,
and transportation sectors, and several other diverse business sectors.

She has been serving as a director of MAEX since 2018.
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U Sai Tun Win is the Chairman of North East Gate Fruit Public Company Limited

and is a patron of the Muse City Fruits Wholesaler Association.

From 1980 to 1981, he was involved in the Gems mining business in Mogok City.
In 1982, he was extened in the Agriculture and Livestock businesses and
distributed the products to Mandalay. He served in the Ministry of Cooperatives
for (4) years. In 1988, he started fruits trades business in Muse City where which
he exported Papaya and Mangoes to Shwe Li, City in China. In 1995, the Muse
City Fruits Wholesaler Association was founded and he served as the Chairman
starting from 2000. In 2015, North East Gate Fruit

Public Limited was formed by 15 Fruits wholesalerswhere he has been the
Chairman since the establishment of the public company. In addition, he is also
the Chairman of Shwe Fruits and Vegetables Agriculture Company and Taiwan
Wholesalers Warehouse.U Sai Tun Win served as the Vice Chairman of the Muse
City Fruits Wholesaler Association from 2007 to 2017 after which he now serves

as an patron.
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U Kyaw Tin Myint served as Director of Myanmar Agro Exchange Company
Limited. He is chairman of Kaung Pyae San Co., Ltd. and also the Managing
Director of Hope Flower Trading. He is also the Executive Director of Myanmar
Automobile Development Public Co., Ltd (MADP). He is vice- chairman of Myanmar
Fertilizer, Seed and Pesticide Entrepreneurs Association and also an excutive
member of the Myanmar Industrial Association and also served as central
executive officer of Myanmar Pulses, Beans and Sesame Seeds Merchants
Association (MPBSMA). U Kyaw Tin Myint holds a Master's degree from Yangon
University. He holds M.A., M.Res, LL.B, B.Sc, D.B.L, D.M.L, D.I.L, D.D.S, D.L.L.S,
D.A.Psy and H.G.P degrees.

He has been serving as a director of MAEX since 2021.



MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2023-2024 AND COMMITTEE

0QOdVOG SlQodoIGP:

MEM$E 9005505005000565600000GP:E1 0 Bi:0d 0700R058EqEs3en A0S0 HF 93d(q CPgad
g€ JoConmeglypion 320000[geseadG: AfoSommaapdesaqt: [Gb8gs 329qBuNndEBEG wadzadbeom
0go500g> GanCgrA8Ees PRt godrdey 6ecCgMA8EEam dfodomgp: () B:od 9§3a6000:0laodi
gP$Eea05005eomMmEn  LCiopgBsCaondgdeon  codJeaqtigps  opgaPoRCdoay g EqpisC
030005 saepdqpeseandcopdicomts s00500gedongp: [goeoqepdmelgE gE:odaood mrgaBel sanjrBigniad
:26oNEedieqeqs] Sldodomgpiel vdcsadlep godrdea ©3god]IEdqPEgYodePoRE ofeepPrdgrdend
8Eg¢ aounod ofjelopEiaBaenypgn 0Ceepadgadend8Eat §eoqepdi GEaBo0od sagpidl§ndomgp: spdiop
omofogepigpst AwO3EQEGP: §eoqed

03860361 god6Eom Sedomgp:aopd 08603 3050005 B WWSSE egdeSaeed 0B8:a3d:ep
R meeqEpdeomnmesionme do€dloopdi oo8icdypioopd Bde§3opgpisCeadd copbieomin 8m =09
§oSomgEapisC 6o0500p5:e0mE: 0EH5NEEGERS Bigr:qdorpSeseloypt: coogpeogs REES M3y
Oloopbi RE63el agodedeam AfnSomgp:aopd cgodrudeamn BEIBERSPsE BoPBBr epdooRd [ogm
6:3:q (9Be0r0d) 828 30p5:36d D0H30daqpimEnle[gé cowraoeddmeann 8qEadgodgEdyp: §god
coelopEs 06:6[gpad06:000 3200p5(gicloopdi ojegadrden Geogrd8Eganpd ny$dadel SpogBesenr3aco
qP:320R05 206[9d[goG: 6075380530906 So[Eadibgsiqpid Bodsnqs o§003:0R05 eSO
eomEgp: [gbeodloogdi

Independent Directors

Our Company has three independent directors who can independently act and who are not required to hold any
qualifying shares, nominated by the Board of Directors, and appointed by the Shareholders of the Company so
as to protect the interests of the stakeholders of the Company. Such shall be the persons who have no relationship
with the Company, its related corporations, its Shareholders or its officers and who could interfere or be reasonably
perceived to interfere with the exercise of the Director’s independent business judgment with a view to the best
interests of the Company. They shall have the same rights and duties as other Directors.

Our independent directors play a crucial role in maintaining the integrity and objectivity of our Board. We are
committed to ensuring that these individuals remain independent of both management and major shareholders.
We are pleased to confirm that our independent directors fulfill all independence criteria, operating free from any
influence or association that could compromise their unbiased judgment. This independence is fundamental to
our governance practices and supports our dedication to upholding the highest standards of corporate governance.
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U Aung Nyunt is a Non- Executive Independent Director of our Company and is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He has 40 years of experience
working in the treasury department of Myanmar Timber Enterprise and retired as
General Manger (Planning). He has served as a director (Finance) in public
companies such as [Timber and Timber Related Products Corporation Limited]

and National Industrial Holdings Co. Ltd.

He has participated in several workshops and seminars on financial management
in different countries. As a financial consultant, he has implemented and initiated
Standard Operating Procedures in terms of treasure and finance in three major
companies. He has worked as an independent auditor for the UMFCCI and the

Myanmar Engineering Society from 2008 to 2013.

He graduated from Yangon Economics University in 1964 and holds a degree in
Accounting. He is also a Certified Public Accountant accredited by the Myanmar

Accounting Council.

U Aung Nyunt has held the position of independent director at MAEX since 2016.
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Dr. Zaw Oo is a Non-Executive Independent Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Currently, he serves as the Chief Director for the
Centre for Economic and Social Development, where he oversees developmental
research and training initiatives. From 2012 to 2016, he served as the Economic

Advisor to the President.

Dr. Zaw Oo holds a master’s degree in International Development Studies from
Columbia University, as well as master’s and Ph.D. degrees in Finance from

American University, Washington D.C.

Prior to this, from 2006 to 2011, he served as the rector for research and taught
International Studies at Chiang Mai University. He has been actively involved in
researching economic changes and policies in ASEAN countries and has
participated in over 30 international conferences relating to economic and

democratic changes.

He has held the position of an independent director at MAEX since 2016.
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Daw Tin May Oo served as a Commission Member of the Securities and Exchange
Commission from its formation in 2014 until 2022. She played a significant role
in the establishment of the SECM and the Yangon Stock Exchange, as well as in
the drafting of the Securities Exchange Law and related rules.

Prior to this role, she accumulated 27 years of experience in the Project Appraisal
and Progress Reporting Department of the Myanmar Ministry of Planning and
Finance. In 1996, she was assigned to form the Myanmar Securities Exchange
Center Co. Ltd. (MSEC), where she served as Board Secretary-cum-Deputy
Director and later as Executive Director.

Daw Tin May Oo holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics (Agriculture Economics)
and a Master's degree in Development Studies.

She has held the position of an independent director at MAEX since 2023.
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Annual Performance Assessment of our management person

The Board of Directors is dedicated to upholding high standards of leadership and accountability. As part of this
commitment, the Board conducts an annual performance assessment of our C-level executives. This assessment
reviews their performance against set goals and objectives, ensuring their activities align with the company’s
strategic direction and contribute to overall success. We are pleased to report that this thorough evaluation

process is effectively in place, reinforcing our commitment to strong and effective leadership.

During this financial year, the Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee collaborated to hold

an annual erformance assessment meeting for management personnel on December 26, 2023.
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U Aung Gyi is CEO of MAEX. He is also serving as a Director in Dagon Group of Companies.
He has been in nationwide logistic while serving in various position under the Timber

Department in Dagon Group. Prior to joining Dagon Group, he worked at the Office of
Auditor General for almost 7 years.

He gained Bachelor Degree for Commerce from Yangon Institute of Economics in 1984.

B:qpeoo58Caopd MAEX ol oocmoeeg saepdqd (962001 oSqodeadq (c0$ag€)
DeeP$0RE mqE:3EH[o ()56 $& B80B§:sC ooamseo§oRgps BG5S
capaleqe SiBirsopt 3-800B8iom[gd (6)§06 om0 006:6800EFA05N Besnnd
[g8er8:gmieqg B:3EBB8000dsE Berger International Public Company Limited (Singapore)
o3 Joint Venture coSa3¢ eoon Berger Paints Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 1 NIBBAN ELECTRIC
& ELECTRONICS 1 RedLink Communications Co., Ltd. 1 Diamond Palace Group of
Companies 06ox cpdckiqps o3¢ Financial Controller soeo8sacd 33808508 000§
0063680032000 990000 §80REBiieqEo0gra3cd o dadgeosomomgdlys 93989
B Joog 95603E aBE:8E¢ University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce ¢ Master of
Business Administration (MBA) 93,03 International Business 32005g[022020q0[g¢ g§30l
2001 B=[gE 226c0§8E¢ London Chamber of Commerce and Industry ¢ Accounting
Certificate 1 Cost Accounting Certificate §<§ BM TRADA (MALAYSIA) SDN BHD ¢ Internal
Quality Audit Certificate o303c0p5s g§ddloopdn B:§j:e0058Ea000 MAEX &l oocroeeg
H2PYYIOPoR:ad Jooe 956 SaComcue 0ols) 030§00d:ea0EgEdRAaod

U Myo Thaw Khaing is Chief Financial Officer of MAEX. Prior to join MAEX, he worked at
Glass Factory (Thanlyin) as an Accountant for 5 years, Planning Department, Ministry of
Planning and Finance as Deputy Planning Officer for 6 years, Berger Paints Manufacturing
Co., Ltd., NIBBAN Electric and Electronics, RedLink Communications Co., Ltd., and
Diamond Palace Group of Companies up to Financial Controller. He holds the B. Com
degree from Institute of Economics (Yangon) in 1982 and Master of Business Administration
(MBA) degree from University of The Thai Chamber of Commerce in 2014. He also
received the Accounting, Cost Accounting Third Level Certificate from London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry and Internal Quality Audit Certificate from BM TRADA
(MALAYSIA) SDN BHD.
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Daw Khin Khin Maw is the Chief Accountant of MAEX. She is the Chief Accountant of No.
2 Plywood Factory and Ruby Lion Company Ltd as a joint product for 12 years. She then
worked for Global Myanmar Services Co., Ltd for 5 years. She graduated from Yangon
Economics University in 1964 and holds a degree in Accounting. She is also a Certified
Public Accountant accredited by the Myanmar Accounting Council. In December 2016,

she received his Diploma in International Financial Reporting from ACCA, UK. Daw Khin
Khin Maw has been the Chief Accountant of MAEX since November 2016.
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U Htay Chun is a Compliance Officer of the Company. He served at the Planning
Department for 22 years, from 1972 to 1994, and at the Directorate of Investment and
Companies Administration for 16 years, from 1994 to 2010, under the Ministry of National
Planning and Economic Development. He retired as the Deputy Director General of the
Directorate of Investment and Companies Administration in 2010. He has 38 years’
experience as a Government Officer.

After retirement, he also served as a Commission member of the Securities Exchange
Commission of Myanmar for 8 years, from 2014 to 2022, and as a Commission member
of the Myanmar Investment Commission for 5 years, from 2016 to 2021.

U Htay Chun holds B. Econ (Statistics) in 1971 and Diploma in Economic Planning in 1979
from Yangon Institute of Economic and Registered Lawyer from Ministry of Education in
1981.
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Board Committees

Our Directors recognize the importance of corporate governance and the maintenance of high standards of accountability
to our shareholders and have adopted the Corporate Governance Policies, Principles, and Guidelines. Our corporate
governance practices are generally consistent with prevailing international principles, to the extent reasonably
practicable, taking into account local conditions in Myanmar. Different Board Committees are responsible for reviewing
the performance of the chairman, board of directors’ CEO, and C-level executives on an annual basis and reviewing
and approving the organizational vision, mission, and value annually.

Our board has established four (4) committees: (a) the Audit committee; (b) the Nomination committee; (c) the

remuneration committee; and (d) the management committee.
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Independence Directors

Our company appointed U Aung Nyunt, Dr. Zaw Oo and Daw Tin May Oo as independent directors in the 7th annual

general meeting to make the Board stronger and more independent.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of U Aung Nyunt, U Thaung Tin, U Sit Lwin, and U Min Sein. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee is U Aung Nyunt. U Aung Nyunt is an Independent Director of MAEX.

Our Audit Committee will assist our Board in discharging its responsibility to safeguard our assets, maintain adequate
accounting records, develop risk management to ensure good corporate governance, safeguard shareholders
investments, and maintain effective systems of internal control, with the overall objective of ensuring that our
management creates and maintains an effective control environment in our Company. Our Audit Committee will
provide a channel of communication between our Board, our management, and our external auditors on matters
relating to audit. The Committee reviews and implements the Code of Conduct in accordance with the corporate
governance policies of Myanmar Agro-Exchange Public Company Limited.

From April 2023 to March 2024, the Audit Committee Meeting was held four times: on May 2, 2023, June 23, 2023,

November 9, 2023, and December 14, 2023, and all committee members attended without absence.
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Nomination Committee

Our Nomination Committee consisted of Dr. Zaw Oo, U Thurane Aung, U Kyaw Tin Myint, and Daw Aye Aye Aung and
Dr. Zaw Oo was the chairman of the committee. Then the nomination committee was reformed with Daw Tin May Oo,
U Ye Phone Hlaing and U Kyaw Tin Myint with the 6/2022-2023 BOD circular letter dated May 3, 2023. Daw Tin May
Oo is a non-executive independent director of MAEX.

Our Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for (a) the re-nomination of our Directors having regard
to a Director’s contribution and performance; (b) determining annually whether or not a Director is independent; and
(c) deciding whether or not a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a Director.

The Committee decides how to evaluate the Board’s performance and proposes objective performance criteria, subject
to the approval of the Board, that address how the Board has enhanced long-term shareholder value. The Board
intends to implement a process to be carried out by the Nominating Committee for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole and the contribution of each individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board. Each member of
the Nominating Committee is required to abstain from voting on any resolutions, making any recommendations, and/
or participating in any deliberations of the Nominating Committee in respect of the assessment of his performance or
re-nomination as Director.

From April 2023 to March 2024, the Nomination Committee Meeting was held on June 25, 2023, August 18, 2023,
December 26, 2023 and all committee members attended without absence.
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Remuneration Committee

Our Remuneration Committee consists of Dr. Zaw Oo, U Phone Phone Naing and Daw Aye Aye Aung. The Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee is Dr. Zaw Oo. Dr. Zaw Oo is a non-executive independent director of MAEX.

The committee also recommends to our Board a framework of remuneration for our Directors and key executives and
determines specific remuneration packages for each Director and key executive. The recommendations of our
remuneration committee, including but not limited to Directors’ fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses, options, and
benefits in kind, shall be covered by our Remuneration Committee. Each member of the Remuneration Committee is
required to abstain from voting on any resolutions, making recommendations, and/or participating in any deliberations
of the Remuneration Committee in respect of his remuneration package.

From April 2023 to March 2024, the Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on June 25, 2023, August 18, 2023,
December 26, 2023 and all committee members attended without absence.
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Management Committee

Our Management Committee comprises U Thurane Aung, U Thaung Tin, U Phone Phone Naing, Daw Yan Lin, Daw Aye
Aye Aung, U Ye Phone Hlaing, and U Aung Gyi. U Thurane Aung is the Chairman of the Management Committee.

Our Management Committee is responsible for (a) formulating short-term and long-term strategies that will guide the
company in the ideal direction that the Board and stakeholders alike envision the company to be in. (b) Delegating and
managing employees in a manner that is in line with the company’s values and principles (c) Ensuring the effective
management of the organization and its activities

From April 2023 to March 2024, the management committee meeting was held a total of four times: August 18, 2023,
December 1, 2023, December 22, 2023, January 26, 2024.
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For MAEX Public Company Limited, the types of decisions requiring Board of Directors' approval are generally disclosed.
This is in accordance with the Myanmar Companies Law 2017 and corporate governance guidelines, which emphasize
transparency and accountability. Key decisions that typically require board approval include:

Financial Decisions: Approval of annual budgets, financial statements, and significant financial expenditures.
Strategic Decisions: Long-term strategic plans, mergers and acquisitions, and major business ventures.
Governance Decisions: Changes in governance policies, board appointments, and executive compensation.

Risk Management: Policies related to risk management and compliance with regulatory requirements.

A A

Operational Decisions: Major operational changes, such as entering new markets or significantly altering
business operations.

The Board of Directors of our company regularly discusses and reviews the impact and challenges posed by various
factors affecting the company. During Board of Directors meetings, our directors evaluate the implications of market
conditions, regulatory changes, strategic initiatives, political uncertainty, exchange rate risk, and operational issues to
ensure informed decision-making and effective governance.

During the 2023-2024 financial year, the Board of Directors has convened meetings to ensure that the company's
performance and activities align with its vision. Board meetings were held on the following dates: May 22, 2023; July
25, 2023; September 26, 2023; September 29, 2023; December 29, 2023; and March 22, 2024.
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° U Win Aung Non-Executive Chairman 4 v v v v v
2000 2 BFRS
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Vice-Chairman
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Daw Yan Lin
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Bieoon&ion
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e Brop8feant @ﬁeegéfgﬁcw y ) , , , v
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20§38 [1]
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[1] U Ye Phone Hlaing, the Director of the company, announced his retirement following the 1/2022-2023 BoD Meeting
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Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited the 7th Annual
General Meeting

On 29th September 2023, 7th Annual General Meeting of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited (MAEX)
was held online based event. The event was held successfully with 84.19% shareholding for their voting rights, the
141 online registered shareholders who owned 20,043,071 shares (twenty million forty-three thousand seventy-one
shares).

From shareholder who attend
AGM

Announcement and Resolutions

Voting Result %

1 Among the attendees of the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders who

owned 19,721,544 shares were in agreement and approved the Company’s FY

2022-2023 Board of Directors’ report, financial statements, and audit report. Passed 98.39%
2 According to the financial statement as of March 31, 2023, shareholders were
notified of the decision to distribute dividends starting from October 9, 2023, Passed N/A
at the rate of 120 kyats per share owned by the shareholders as dividends.
3 Among the attendees of the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders who
owned 19,720,972 shares agreed and approved the rewarding of 1.5% of the Passed 99.97%

net profit of FY 2022-2023 as a Board of Directors (BOD) Bonus to 14 members
of the Board.

4 Election of the Company’s Board of Directors and re-appointment of independent
directors.

According to Section 173 (b) of the Myanmar Company Law, three directors have
resigned, and there are only two nominees for director positions. Shareholders
were informed that voting is unnecessary.

List of resigned directors:

(1) Daw Yan Lin

2) U Thurane Aung Passed 98.39%
3) U Ye Phone Hlaing

List of Nominated directors:
B 1) Daw Yan Lin
2) U Thurane Aung

Announcement of the Board of Directors for Myanmar Agro Exchange Public
Company Limited for the 2023-2024 financial year.

Directors are:

(1) U Win Aung

) U Sit Lwin




ANNUAL GENERAL MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
MEETING 2023-2024

From shareholder who attend
AGM

Announcement and Resolutions
Result Voting Result %
B 3) U Min Sein

(4) U Phone Phone Naing

(5) U Sai Tun Win

(6) U Kyaw Tin Myint (b) U Tin Myint
(7) Daw Aye Aye Aung

(8) Daw Yan Lin

9) U Thurane Aung

C Among the attendees of the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders who
owned (19,721,544) shares, were agreed and approved for confirmation of Passed 98.39%
the appointment of (3) Independent directors for 2023- 2024 Financial
Year.

3 Independent directors are:

1. U Aung Nyunt

2. Dr. Zaw Oo

3. Daw Tin May Oo

D The Representative Director of Yangon City Development Committee
(1) U Thaung Tin (Director, Markets & Commaodities Center Department)

Among the attendees of the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders who
owned 19,721,544 shares agreed and approved the reappointment of Win
Thin and Associates as the Company’s auditor and the approval of the
Auditor Fees by the Board of Directors for the Financial Year 2023-2024.

Passed 98.39%
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Board of Directors’ Interest in Shares (2023-2024)

Sr. No Name Number of shares  Percentage % Remark
1 U WIN AUNG (DAGON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED) 10,416,378 43.76%
B:o&:eamE (30§30C0mesqEs0d 8800nd) 00,696,009 Go-qB%
2 U KYAW TIN MYINT (GOLDEN LAND EAST ASIA DEVELOPMENT 2,000,000 9.24%
LIMITED)
Biaoqpon(gt (eg$Eezngg [Brodoncdeqs opgaRaddannd) Ji000,000 E-J5%
3 U SIT LWIN 668,431 2.81%
égosc\gg 66o,Gp0 J-99%
4 U THURANE AUNG 612,728 2.57%
Srogdfeamt iy o
5 DAW YAN LIN 567,503 2.38%
edlq§cod: 98q.909 Jo0%
6 U YE PHONE HLAING 534,745 2.25%
8:3008:088 999959 JJg%
7 U PHONE PHONE NAING 534,745 2.25%
§:0?$:orl)§r.:$8 995999 J-J9%
8 U MIN SEIN 191,419 0.80%
§=9&8$ 9@9,G0€ 0.00%
9 U SAI TUN WIN (NORTH EAST GATE FRUIT CO., LTD.) 111,405 0.47%
B:8E:098:08: (2064),6[gp0P0d9k 20838: orgaBB80005) 209,G0g) 0.69%
10 DAW AYE AYE AUNG 79,951 0.34%
cgleaaeaaicant WEH° 0.96%

15,382,560 64.62%

2g),00,,§60 65.6,%

Independent Directors’ Interest in Shares

Sr. No Name Number of shares Percentage % Remark
1 U Aung Nyunt 0 0
Bieamnlons
2 Dr. Zaw Oo 0 0
edlodomeadS:
3 Daw Tin May Oo 0 0
edlonteods

YCDC Represntative Directors’ Interest in Shares

Sr. No Name Number of shares Percentage % Remark

1 U Thaung Tin 0 0
B:aomEsoné
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Top (10) Major Beneficial Shareholders (up to 22.7.2024)
JJ-9-JoJs cﬁ] £3m$mmtﬁumj]3 (00) §= mq&ﬁn csmﬁé]auf}&@ﬁméu

Certificate of
Incorporation/number of
certificate of citizenship

Number of shares | Percentage %

1 DAGON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 115393715 10,416,378 43.76%
(30§32EomesqEsud AB8000d) 00,696,pq0 Go-qB%
2 GOLDEN LAND EAST ASIA
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED LI 9.24%
_ bev ) 115075667 P eUc%
(eg8EesmgQ [BpoB:on0dee; mrgBc880o0d)

3 U SIT LWIN 668,431 2.81%
806008 14/PATHANA(N)150674 BEe,c00 Jea%
4 U THURANE AUNG TN A IETEE 612,728 2.57%
Biopdhoant N BogiqJe J9q%

5 WILLOW MYANMAR INVESTMENT
COMPANY LIMITED. 105408597 605,000 2.54%
.§G%

95((\3)03: @$m 998($)O(73(608)9% OPgO)% Gog,000 J:99
880005

6 DAW YAN LIN 1/MANYANA(N)027160 567,503 2.38%
edlqSco: 96Q.909 J:o0%
7 U YE PHONE HLAING 12/BAHANA(N)054971 557,025 2.34%
8:3008:c88 999,09 JR5%
8 U PHONE PHONE NAING 9/MANAMA(N)007593 534,745 2.25%
é:o?f%:o?%:%& 9PI999 J-J9%
9 MYANMAR CREATIVE BUSINESS 400,000 1.85%
GROUPS CO.,LTD 116205718 GOO,000 0.0§%
10 DAW KHIN HTAR WIN AIMANYANA(N)074303 358,710 1.51%
edlo€aosod: 99,Q00 0.0 %

MAEX’s Shareholding Structure in Percentage

m DAGON INTERNATIONAL LTD.
B GOLDEN LAND EAST ASIA DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC CO.,
LTD.
SITLWIN, U
THURANE AUNG, U
EWILLOW MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
W Daw Yan Lin
B U YE PHONE HLAING
B PHONE PHONE NAING, U
B MYANMAR CREATIVE BUSINESS
B Daw Khin Htar Win

B Others
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Shareholders Statistics(up to (22.7.2024) )
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Number of Issued and Fully Paid-Up Shares: 23,804,946 shares
Class of Shares: Ordinary Shares
Voting Rights: One Vote Per Share

Range of Shares No.of Shareholders Percentage No.of Shares Percentage
1-100 709 30.23% 40,411 0.17%
101-1000 1003 42.77% 482,746 2.03%
1001-2000 226 9.64% 348,848 1.47%
2001-3000 97 4.14% 249,590 1.05%
3001-4000 35 1.49% 123,478 0.52%
4001-5000 47 2.00% 229,107 0.96%
5001-6000 47 2.00% 264,053 1.11%
6001-7000 10 0.43% 65,180 0.27%
7001-8000 10 0.43% 77,890 0.33%
8001-9000 5 0.21% 43,301 0.18%
9001-10000 41 1.75% 408,839 1.72%
10001-100000 91 3.92% 2,672,702 11.23%
100001 & up 23 0.98% 18,798,801 78.97%
Total 2,344 100% 23,804,946 100%

Board of Directors, Related Parties, Key Management and Compliance

Officer Remuneration (salary, honorarium, bonus, total remuneration) Kyats In Millions
( April 23 -Mar 24)

REMUNERATION ALLOWANCE
BAND & Name OF BASS'E(:LXYED FOR MEETING
DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE
1 Director (Package) 32.20 5.60 37.80
2 Independent Director 66.00 7.80 1.70 75.50

3 Excetive Officers 177.33 28.82 - 206.16
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Sustainbility Report

Since our focus is on facilitating the food sector, sustainability is a must. Specifically, this means: we intend to have a
positive influence infrastructure needed on food availability, quality and safety in terms of health, society and the
environment, prevent food waste through handling and storing, as well as offering efficient solutions that simplify our
farmers and shopkeepers’ business activities. At the same time, we want to minimise our environmental and social
footprint by dealing responsibly with people and resources, and generally creating positive impacts for society.

Our vision is to make retail and wholesale more sustainable along the value chain, in our work with farmers, small and
medium-sized independent businesses through to customer side. By bringing our needs and ambitions in line with the
needs of nature, people and future generations, we can provide MAEX with long-term prospects for prosperity and
overcome the conventional limits to growth. By informing, inspiring, motivating and supporting our employees,
customers and partners, we can ensure this visionary approach has the potential to reach millions of people.

Our mission is aligned closely with our Sustainability & Responsibility ("S&R") strategy, enabling us to create greater
value for our stakeholders. MAEX's focus is on high standards of governance, sustainability and responsibility to reflect
our commitment as a leading business in Myanmar. MAEX’s sustainability approach to doing business integrates social
and environmental criteria into the company’s strategy, operations and decision-making, and translates our ambition
for more sustainable development into concrete actions.

As a regional wholesale business, MAEX works with a large number of suppliers, growers and producers. Our objective
is to ensure socially equitable working conditions. As we expect our business partners to assume and observe similar
values to ours.

Human rights are deeply rooted in our culture. Our programs are established to ensure that all of our employees are
treated with respect and dignity. Freely-chosen employment, prevention of underage labor, fair organization of working
time, fair wages and benefits, fair treatment and anti-harassment, non-discrimination, freedom of association, fair
working conditions and employee well-being, and privacy of personal information. We regularly identify and assess any
risks in our operations and supply chain, and take appropriate action to mitigate them.

MAEX Code of Conduct for all stakeholders, includes the observance of human rights as per UN and ILO standards,
labour, protection of the environment as well as regulations on corporate ethics, in particular on combatting corruption
and bribery.
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The coronavirus pandemic has had a profound impact on the world and despite the challenging climate. MAEX remains
committed to sustainability measures and is continuously working on ways to implement such measures in its
operations. As part of these efforts, MAEX is voluntarily making this summary of its mission and on-going efforts of
sustainability programmes up to FY 2023-2024.

MAEX supports the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Our contribution to 10 of the 17 SDGs is
highlighted throughout the report, including indicators to measure our performance against these goals: SDG .

Goals (SDGs) The SDGs set by the United Nations define global sustainable development priorities and aspirations for
2030, highlighting the world’s biggest social and environmental issues. As a multinational company, we believe we
have a responsibility to help achieve these goals. We mapped the 17 SDGs to our material topics and business strategy.
We then identified the 10 goals that are most relevant to our Sustainability strategy. Our performance against these
SDGs is highlighted throughout this report.

1 Company 231 Staffs = 7309 Stores = 20000 Customers = Countless Consumers
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SDG GOAL 1. No Poverty
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Our business: wholesale market, and real estate
services, and it has creates job opportunities along
the supply chain, from farmers and producers to
wholesalers, retailers, and market vendors.

By ensuring efficient and sustainable management
of wholesale markets, our market ensuring that
essential items are available at affordable prices
and this lead reducing the economic burden on
low-income individuals and families.

By providing a platform for smallholder farmers and
small-scale entrepreneurs to access to larger
markets and buyers. By enabling small-scale
farmers to sell their produce in bulk, they can
achieve better prices and economic stability, which
can contribute to poverty reduction.

By signing an MOU with UAB, AYA, and a bank, and
providing financial resources to shopkeepers, loans
help businesses grow, create jobs, and increase
incomes, thereby reducing poverty. Increased
employment opportunities enable individuals and
communities to improve their living standards.
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SD GOAL 3. Good Health and Well-Being

o 805005353 320p5:qP:asdeOR0d  07$2060000005E
a0egesamg§eofgta

o 0g8603eicndesmniagpielops  [gpSopgpizeed] o505
2060206800EE0 FPOJEA0056EPDG [§08Cegmaspd: 902
§eoqs ceongadoon[gts

o oqimopl: 38qlqpimadiznot eepaqopgpisC 005e3E
2P0l Gomig§eomn oyfieneass codadudeq a0§qEs
48e0qs 0peuEBIEPYP: [grpdeugts

* [gSoporfioreeegbepigepicy oaf  esanoglionbi

eqp3mEyPis GaozonodadepaygtoyConypist s00dogud[g: Mask Campaign 0398 oqfsenceadCep agdeps
qqps GaontgodeoggCs

e aiming to ensure healthy lives and well-being for all of our stakeholders.
e We are engaged in minimizing risks of negative impact on people due to our activities.

e Offer training and educational programs to stakeholders, including retailers and shopkeepers, on health and
hygiene best practices.

e Engage with local health authorities and medical professionals to support health initiatives and public health
campaigns such as mask campaigns.
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SD GOAL 4. Quality Education
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e Supporting education and knowledge sharing.

e Offering employee workshops, seminars, and courses that enhance their skills in areas such as customer service,
logistics, communication, and business management.

e Incorporate IT training for employees and shopkeepers to equip them with digital literacy skills.
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SD GOAL 5. Gender Equality
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Promoting gender equality within our workplace and market by ensuring equal pay and opportunities for all
employees.

3 Women on our Board of Directors out of 13.

1in 3 of our C-Level is a woman.

Offering generous parental leave policies and support for employees who are parents
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SD GOAL 6. Clean Water and Sanitation
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We are committed to reducing our water consumption and increase recycling.

Placing (25 liter) water purifiers for Community Use in the market that can filter bacteria and germs etc.
Wastewater to be properly discharged into the environment.

Clean water supply to wash fruits and vegetable.

Using BIO septic tanks for proper sewage treatment.

Collecting rainwater for non-potable purposes, such as cleaning toilet to reduce the demand on freshwater sources.
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SD GOAL 7. Affordable and Clean Energy
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e We deploy programs to improve energy efficiency in all

our activities.

e Implemented a pilot project at Market Building (1) where 124 kilowatts of solar panels have been installed on the
rooftop.

e Replacement of energy saving lights. ( LED Lighting).

e Maximise natural lighting.
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SD GOAL 8. Decent Work and Economic Growth
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e Zero tolerance on forced labor.

e Offer fair wages, benefits, and opportunities for growth to employees and suppliers, ensuring decent work
conditions.

e Invest in employee training and development to enhance skills and productivity.
e We assess and mitigate social risks in our extended supply chain.

e We focus on providing a safe workplace.

e Force Labour =0

e Minimize accident at work place
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& SD GOAL 9. Industry, Innovation and
Infrastructure
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We share information to encourage and promote innovation to various stakeholder and development partners,
research institutes throughout the country.

Ensure that our vegetable wholesale market has modern and efficient infrastructure.

Adopt innovative technologies and digital solutions to improve market operations and embrace digital platforms
for ordering and communication to enhance efficiency.
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- SD GOAL 10. Reduced Inqualities
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We promote equal opportunities for all regardless of their disability.

Supporting the equality of opportunity, treatment and outcome for our emlpoyees.

Implementation and enforcing policies and practices to ensure non discrimination such as recruitment, promotions
and accessibility of the workplace.

Policy in place to hire disability, various sexual orientation, religious.
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¢ We minimize waste in landfill; we reduce our consumption of chemicals and eliminate hazardous materials.

e Recycling of packing materials and use of Natural packing materials.

e Optimize transportation routes and use energy-efficient vehicles to reduce carbon emissions.

¢ Implement energy-saving measures within the market by using LED High Bay to reduce energy consumption.

e Garbage compactor to minimise trips to landfills.
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We deploy programs to reduce our GHG emissions. In our business operations, we are actively working to
decrease annual energy consumption and water usage in the market. As the volume of market-generated waste
rises, we are committed to selling it for reuse, such as animal feed, to promote sustainability and prevent wastage.

By actively organizing in the Moonsoon tree-plantation, we are harnessing the power of nature to fight climate change.

Through our commitment to SD Goal 13, we aim to reduce our carbon footprint and promote sustainable practices
in every aspect of our business.

We are trying to reduce the amount of water used in operations as much as possible and to mitigate the rise in
electricity consumption resulting from construction and market buildings, we are adopting solar energy as a
sustainable alternative. We recycles organic waste from our market as animal feed, processing average 225.54
tons per month, which is 30.27% of the total waste generated.
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Sustainable Profit

Our commitment to sustainability is critical to our long-term business success. Our actions to drive sustainable progress
are designed to enhance our financial performance, mitigate risk, and our reputation among stakeholders as a pioneer
in our industry.

In the financial year 2023, revenue increased by 15% compared to the previous financial year, driven by an increase
in the number of rental shops within our Market Building, the expansion of infrastructure for project part (2), and the
addition of parking spaces. As construction activities continue, including the expansion and construction of basic
buildings in the Public Area and the expansion of Shop Houses, we remain dedicated to investing in growth oppotunities
and operational efficiencies.

Our Market operations have stabilized and are on a growth trajectory. From April 2023 to March 2024, the next sales
revenue from the management of Danyingone Wholesale Market and the sale of Shop Houses reached 24.36 billion,
marking a record year for sales.
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Our People
Growth
Compared with 2022-2023
Headcount Resign Rate Absenteeism Rate Staff Turnover Rate
231 (+4%) 2% (-3%) 3% (-3%) 6% (-13%)
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Diversity and Inclusion

Diversity has been part of our corporate DNA and remains one of our strategic priorities. We are convinced
that diversity and inclusion bring value to our business through effective innovation, attractiveness,
engagement and agility. It fuels our sustainable growth and performance. Our strategy, strongly
supported by our management team, is to:

e foster an inclusive culture

e provide equal opportunities for career development and advancement, regardless of gender,
ethnicity, age and culture

e diversify our workforce by attracting diverse talent.

Promoting women and equal opportunities: Strengthening the role of women in building MAEX’s future
is one of our ongoing objectives.
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Environment

To make sure we conduct our core business successfully and satisfy the needs of our customers, we need energy and
natural resources today as well as tomorrow — so that we can transport and store products properly, refrigerate fresh
produce and also maintain our stores and administrative offices. Within our operations, our measures for lowering
greenhouse gas emissions and consequently helping to protect the planet are focused on 3 main areas: improving
energy efficiency and making energy savings, optimising resource consumption and reducing and preventing waste.

Embracing renewable energy sources and implementing eco-friendly practices, we work towards reducing our carbon
footprint and fostering resilience in the face of environmental challenges. Our dedication to SDGs is not merely a local
commitment but a global vision to create a world where environmental harmony coexists with human progress and
prosperity, ensuring a better tomorrow for generations to come.

Among our five market buildings, four of them—Market Buildings 1, 2, 3, and 5—are already equipped with LED High
Bay Lights. Whenever the lights in the remaining Market Building 4 need replacement, we are also installing LED High
Bay Lights. With the goal of reducing energy consumption in the next fiscal year, we are committed to replacing all
light bulbs in Danyingone Wholesale Market with 100% LED lighting.

These measures align with our commitment to implementing sustainable business practices, reducing operational
costs, and enhancing environmental stewardship.

As part of our renewable energy initiative, we have implemented a pilot project at Market Building (1) where 124
kilowatts of solar panels have been installed on the rooftop. This initiative serves as a test case for harnessing solar
energy, and it has been operational since April 2023. We are currently conducting testing and utilization of the solar
electricity generated from the pilot project to power selected street lamps within our market premises. The purpose of
this initiative is to assess the effectiveness and efficiency of solar energy integration in our lighting infrastructure.
Based on the positive results obtained so far, we are developing a comprehensive plan to extend solar panel installations
to the roofs of all our market buildings over the next five years. This strategic approach aligns with our long-term
business objectives of adopting sustainable energy practices and reducing operational costs through renewable energy
utilization. The implementation of solar power across all market locations will enhance our environmental footprint and
reinforce our commitment to environmentally conscious business operations that expect carbon dioxide reduction and
generation from solar energy.

We're upgrading technology to cut paper consumption, and the majority of mandatory paper usage is from recycled
sources.

Replantation, or reforestation, for organizations is a significant initiative in combating climate change and managing
CO2 emissions and so we actively engage in the tree planting festivals during the rainy season as part of our commitment
to combat climate change. These initiatives aim to align with global efforts in safeguarding biodiversity and fostering
a sustainable future for the planet and its inhabitants.

We emphasize on proper waste disposal in our Markets, separate organic waste and utilize some of these organic
waste for animal feed raw materials etc. Non-Organic waste is also collected in a way to recycle as much as we can.
The left-over waste is compacted is a way to safe multiple trips to landfill which we could save CO2 emission from the
trunk.
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Protecting people from harm and safeguarding their health is key for our success. Our market plays a crucial role in
the supply chain, connecting manufacturers or producers with retailers, distributors, or other businesses. Given the

large scale of operations and the diverse range of products handled, health and safety considerations are of utmost

importance to ensure the well-being of workers, customers, and the general public.

Following the preventive measures and proper placement of fire extinguishers as directed by the fire department for
fire safety in the market; having security teams for sellers and shoppers to trade safely in the market; increasing health
awareness and promoting a healthy lifestyle for shopkeepers and employees for the prevention of COVID-19; and
implementing a traffic management system that separates pedestrian and traffic lanes in order to prevent traffic

accidents to make the market a healthy and safe market.
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Throughout this financial year, we have prioritized initiatives aimed at enhancing cleanliness in market stalls to promote
the health of vendors and shoppers. Additionally, we have provided food to our company's employees and school
supplies to school-age children of shopkeepers, cargo workers, and company staff. Our efforts also include the
construction and dedication of the Htut Myat Htike Khaung Pagoda, as well as the annual celebration of the Bo tree
watering festival, Damah Preach Celebration, and Kahtein Thingan Offering Festival.

CSR AND DONATION EXPENDITURE

No Particular 2023-2024 Remark
1 Health & Safety 1,800,000
2 Community 61,861,590
3 Religious 99,148,394
4 Education 24,992,880
5 Others 12,214,878
Total 200,017,742
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On June 18, 2023, Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Co., Ltd. (MAEX) hosted a back-to-school ceremony in Market Hall
1 of the Danyingone Wholesale Market. The event focused on supporting school-age children of shopkeepers, cargo
workers, and company employees for the 2023-2024 academic year.

During the ceremony, a total of 605 students received essential school supplies, including backpacks, stationery, and
funds for school uniforms. This initiative underscores MAEX's commitment to the education and well-being of the
children within the community.
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Risk Management

The Audit Committee is ultimately responsible for
monitoring the effectiveness and quality of the risk
management system across the company.

Due to the nature of its activities, the company has to
deal with a range of risks which is significant. Therefore,
for the risks, which are particularly relevant at Business
Sector level, their management is delegated to the
appropriate Business Sector Board.

For the risks which are relevant across the company and
which may impact its ability to deliver its strategy, the
Audit Committee will ensure that the relevant functions,
directors and entities are setting and implementing
actions plans to mitigate these risks. When analyzing
the company’s risks, Audit Committee review the
company’s material controls and risk management
systems. Some of the risks, whose management is
critical for safeguarding the company’s sustainability.

These risks and uncertainties are not the only issues
that MAEX faces; additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to MAEX may also have a material
adverse effect on its financial condition or business
success. MAEX is not in a position to specify or quantify
financial or other risks mentioned herein.

Risks relating to the construction and development of
Danyingone Fruits, Vegetables and Flower Wholesale
Market (Danyingone Project)

Agreement Contract with Yangon City Development
Committee (YCDC)

MAEX has signed Agreement Contract with YCDC in
order to construct and develop Danyingone Fruits,
Vegetables and Flower Wholesale market on 22 March
2016 with the following conditions:

e YCDC is entitled to 20% of Total 200 units = 40
units(Large trading halls/ office/ shophouse)

e 25% of Net Profit before tax will be paid to YCDC as
land rent

MAEX has to complete the construction project in
accordance with the period mentioned in the agreement
contract and if it does not complete within the period
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MAEX has to face paying penalties with daily prescribed
rate .

During the construction and development process, if
there is a claim to MAEX and it's employees by 3rd
party, MAEX has to take responsibility to compensate
and protect from any detriments.

Financial Risks

The construction and development of Danyingone
Fruits, Vegetables and Flower Wholesale Market is
capital intensive in nature and there is the risk that
MAEX may be unable to obtain adequate capital to
complete the entire project.

MAEX's future financing and cash flows from operation
may not be sufficient to meet such capital requirements
for potential developments. In the case that, MAEX
cannot obtain adequate funds to satisfy its capital
requirements, it may need to limit its operations and
growth strategies accordingly which would have an
adverse effect on its business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospect.

In addition, because of our strategy to use proceeds
from sales and rental of shop houses, sales of fruit and
vegetable wholesale shop and sales of petrol station to
partly support for the construction of the whole
Danyingone Project depends on an ability to sell the
units, and any inability to do so could impair our
financial condition.

- Financial position of the Company may be
deteriorated if its production costs continue to
rise, while, it is unable to obtain approval for a
tariff increase.

- The Company requires substantial capital in
order to fund its proposed investments in
construction and distribution infrastructure.

- The Company has deposited or extended loans
to certain counterparties, whose defaults could
adversely affect the Company’s financial
position

Sales Risks

- 20% of shophouses are to be allocated to
Yangon City Development Committee (YCDC)
phase by phase in accordance with our contract
with YCDC. The expected revenue stream from
sales of shophouses for the remaining 80% is
based on the assumptions of our management.

- 20% of shophouses allocated to YCDC may be
sold again at price higher or lower than the
market price.

Risk relating to our Indebtedness

We have short-term loans in AYA Bank and many incur
additional indebtedness, which could adversely affect
our financial condition in the case that have to repayment
on demand.

Environmental Risks

Waste Management is an aspect of Sustainable
Development, which is fuelled by the growing concern
for the effect of man’s activities on the environment.
The management processes to reduce, reuse, recycle
and effectively dispose of wastes has a serious bearing
on the final cost, quality, time and impact of the project
on the environment.

Governance and Compliance Risk

According to our Nature of Business, we do need to
comply with the following rules and regulations

Food Safety Regulations

Building rules for construction work

Construction Safety rules

Environmental protection rule

Labour law and regulations

There s a risk of litigation, penalties and fines occurrence
because of incompliance with the above laws and
regulations.

Operational Risks

Increase in raw material prices may affect construction



MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

prices of raw material used for the construction of the
proposed project, such as ready mixed concrete, steel
reinforcement bars, precast components, tiles,
concreting sand, cement, steel welded mesh, steel
strands, mold steel, stainless steel, aluminum glass,
wood and paint, etc. will fluctuate according to the
varying levels of supply and demand of these materials.

Payments from clients, purchasers are generally made
according to prescribed payment schedules. Delays in
payment from purchasers could result in a prolonged
time lag between disbursement for operating expenses
and the receipts of payments from purchasers, which
could adversely affect cash flow of MAEX.

Risk relating to our Indebtedness

We have four-year term loans at UAB Bank that may
incur additional indebtedness, which could adversely
affect our financial condition if we have to repay them
on demand.

Exchange Rate Risk

MAEX is exposed to exchange rate movement. Because
our construction materials mostly are imported from
overseas and exchange rate fluctuation may have
impact on our financial position.

Industry Risks
There are four main risks related to the industry risks.

- Dependence on major customers, particularly
the sector which is negatively affected by the
goal economic downturn

- Decrease in GDP per capital which may affect
the average standard of living as well as the
level of product consumption

- Decrease in Yangon's population which may
lead to decrease in product consumption.

- Expansion of business coverage area requiring
large capital expenditures, which may result in
reduction of margins.

Key Management and Personnel Risks

The Company’s performance depends, in part or in
whole, upon the continued service and performance of
key management and key staff of the Company. The
loss of any of these key personnel could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business and financial
position.

Risks relating to Myanmar

Risks of being affected by political, security, economic
and social situations in Myanmar.

Risk Relating to the Listing Volatility of our share price.
Our Shares may not be suitable as an investment for all
investment. Substantial future sale of shares could
adversely affect the market price of our shares. The
impact of the introduction of trading of foreign share
trading by foreign inverstors on the YSX is unpredictable
and may lead to confusion among investors.

The details of Risk Factor related to MMyanmar Agro
Exchange Public Company Limited can be read on pages
13-22 of the Disclosure Document for Listing (DDL).
https://ysx-mm.com/main-board/listing/company/
Ic00008/
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Board of Director’s Report
This report covers the financial year 2023-2024.

(A)Significant Changes in State of Affairs

During this period, MAEX achieved substantial success in revenue generation, with total revenue
reaching 24.39 billion kyats, marking a 36% Increase compared to the previous year. The average
monthly income also experienced significant growth, rising by 36%.

The primary revenue sources were shop house and medium wholesale sales, which generated 18.85
billion kyats, representing an impressive 54% increase from the previous year. Additionally, market
operating income surged to 5.31 billion kyats, a 15% increase over the previous financial year.

Gross profit saw remarkable growth, reaching 12.38 billion kyats, an outstanding 97% increase
compared to the previous year. This improvement in gross profit margin was significantly driven by
increased rental income from market buildings, shophouses, and medium wholesale sales.

(B) Dividend Distribution

Financial Year 2019: A total of 649.23 million kyats was distributed to shareholders at a rate of 30 kyats
per 1,000 kyats valued share, starting from October 19, 2020.

Financial Year 2019-2020: A total of 649.23 million kyats was distributed to shareholders at a rate of
30 kyats per 1,000 kyats valued share, starting from June 28, 2021.

Financial Years 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 (mini budget): A total of 2,596.90 million kyats was distributed
to shareholders at a rate of 120 kyats per 1,000 kyats valued share, starting from August 29, 2022.

Financial Year 2022-2023: A total of 2,856.59 million kyats was distributed to shareholders at a rate of
120 kyats per share, starting from October 9, 2023.

Financial Year 2023-2024: A total of 4,760.99 million kyats was approved for distribution at a rate of
200 kyats per share by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 21, 2024. This resolution will
be announced to shareholders at the 8th Annual General Meeting.

(C) External Audit

In accordance with the Myanmar Companies Act, the Board of Directors will seek approval from
shareholders at the 8th Annual General Meeting to appoint Win Thin and Associates as external auditors
for the financial year 2024-2025.

Board of Directors
Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED.

No. 262-264, Pyay Road, Dagon Centre (1), Block (A), 4" Floor, Sanchaung Township, Yangon, Myanmar.
Tel : 95-1-503928, 503929, 514226 Fax : 95-1-516616
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED.

No. 262-264, Pyay Road, Dagon Centre (1), Block (A), 4" Floor, Sanchaung Township, Yangon, Myanmar.
Tel : 95-1-503928, 503929, 514226 Fax : 95-1-516616 [ElE

=

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

It is the responsibility of the management to prepare the financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited (the
“Company”) as at 31 March 2024 and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes. In preparing these financial statements, the management is required to:

— Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with |
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company. We have general

responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to us to safeguard the assets of the

Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of Management

U Win Aung
Chairman
Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited

21 June 2024
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WP WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES LTD

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Room (2B/2C) 1* Floor, Rose Condominium, No. 182/194, Botahtaung Pagoda Road, Pazundaung Township,
Yangon Region, Myanmar. Tel: 95-1-8201798, 8296164, Fax: 95-1-8245671 Email: info@winthinassociates.com

Ref: 193 / M-283 / March 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited
(the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs)
and the provisions of the Myanmar Companies Law (the “Law”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA
Code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in Myanmar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




Key audit matters

Revenue — Sale of buildings

Refer to Notes 2(0) and 20 of the
financial statements.

During the financial year, the
Company's income from sales of
buildings (shop house and medium
wholesale) was MMK
19,413,691,000 which represents
79% of total revenue. The Company
adopted accounting policies with two
different options regarding
recognition of revenue from sales of
buildings (shop house and medium
wholesale) depending on the type of
buildings.

Based on the facts above, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

Trade debtors
Refer to Notes 2(H) and 10 of the
financial statements.

During the financial year, sales of
buildings increased significantly and
so consequently trade debtors balance
increased  accordingly and it
represents MMK 6,803,720,150 and
that is 24% of total current assets.
Credit terms with the customers are on
an installment basis,

Based on the facts above, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Our audit procedures to assess the revenue recognized for sales
of buildings, amongst other, included the followings:

Carried out analytical procedures to review the significant
items, or those which are otherwise unusual.

Reviewed that the accounting policies adopted for the
recognition and measurement of revenue comply with MFRSs.

Evaluated the Company’s procedures for determining the
percentage of completion, including the reliability of cost and
revenue estimates, progress measurements, and the recognition
of variations and change orders.

Reviewed the Company’s accounting policies, disclosures, and
internal controls related to contracts to ensure compliance with
MFRSs.

Reviewed the contracts with buyers to make sure that those
were executed properly.

Checked that cost incurred or to be incurred can be measured
reliably.

Checked that the stage of completion was reliably measured.

Recalculated the revenue amount recognized in the financial
statements.

Considered the adequacy of related disclosures in the financial
statements in terms of MFRSs.

Our audit procedures to assess the trade debtors, amongst other,
included the followings:

Carried out analytical procedures to review the significant
items, or those which are otherwise unusual.

Reviewed the contracts with customers to ensure that the
Company owns, or has legal rights to, all the receivables
recorded in the general ledger at the end of the reporting period.

Checked that all credit sale transactions occurred on or before
period end and are correctly recorded in the general ledger.

Reviewed that the adequate allowance for impairment was
made for doubtful receivables,

We obtained confirmations from the Company’s customers
with our direct control to verify the existence of balances at year
end.

Considered the adequacy of related disclosures in the financial
statements in terms of MFRSs.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with MFRSs and the provisions of the Law, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of the Law, we also report that:
(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required and
(i) financial records have been maintained by the Company as required by Section 258 of the Law.

Nay ﬁ:m (PAPP - 466)

Engagement Partner
WIN THIN & ASSOCIATES LTD
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. ACC 008

21 June 2024
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
MMEK’000 MMK’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment properties 6 11,564,730 11,819,141
Property, plant and equipment 7 17,203,390 12,171,085
Intangible asset 8 19,400 46,262

28,787,520 24,036,488

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 2,552,432 3,255,896
Trade and other receivables 10 7,122,052 1,823,568
Advances and prepayments 11 2,707,896 1,582,850
Inventories 12 79,913 2,052,349
Work-in-progress 13 16,104,329 3,796,269
Deferred tax asset 14(b) 71,616 33,400

28,638,238 12,544,332

57,425,758 36,580,820

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital 15 24,999,130 21,753,001
Advance receive for right issue - 1,559,002
Retained earnings 5,788,578 2,896,676

30,787,708 26,208,679

Non-current liabilities

Borrowing 16 4,638,592 2,500,000

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 5,925,623 1,578,156

Deposit and advances 18 8,326,783 243,000

Provisions 19 3,658,392 1,962,325

Accrued expenses 20 4,088,660 4,088,660
21,999,458 7,872,141
57,425,758 36,580,820

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Authenticated by:

@
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MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note
Revenue - net 21
Cost of sales 23
Gross profit
Other income 22
Expenses
- General and administrative 23
- Marketing 23
- Finance 23
Share of profit to YCDC 19
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense 14(a)
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per share (Kyat per share)
Basic earnings per share 26
Diluted earnings per share 26

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

A

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
24,395,753 17,960,424
(12,020,684)  (11,684,317)
12,375,069 6,276,107

261,675 271,590
(2,805,958) (1,912,421)
(125,233) (18,945)
(475,838) (10,709)
9,229,715 4,605,622
(2,309,013) (1,159,801)
6,920,702 3,445,821
(1,172,207) (758,081)
5,748,495 2,687,740
5,748,495 2,687,740
241 124
245 124




MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Share Advance Retained Total
capital  receive for earnings
right issue

MMK’000 MMK’000 MMK’000 MMK’000

At 1 April 2023 21,753,001 1,559,002 2,896,676 26,208,679
Addition during the year 1,687,127 - - 1,687,127
Transfer from/(to) 1,559,002 (1,559,002) — -
Profit for the year — - 5,748,495 5,748,495
Other comprehensive income for the year = - — =
Total comprehensive income for the year 24,999,130 - 8,645,171 33,644,301
Issue of shares - - - -
Dividend (Note 24) - - (2,856,593) (2,856,593)
- - (2,856,593)  (2,856,593)
At 31 March 2024 24,999,130 - 5,788,578 30,787,708
At 1 April 2022 21,753,001 — 2,805,839 24,558,840
Advance receive for right issue — 1,559,002 — 1,559,002
Profit for the year - - 2,687,740 2,687,740

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 21,753,001 1,559,002 5,493,579 28,805,582
Contribution from and distributions to owners

Issue of shares - - - -
. Dividend (Note 24) - - (2,596,903) (2,596,903)
— - (2,596,903) (2,596,903)

At 31 March 2023 21,753,001 1,559,002 2,896,676 26,208,679

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 6,920,702 3,445,821
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortization 1,002,553 758,286
- Interest income (121,647) (100,109)
- Gain on disposal of fixed assets (1,617) —
Operating profit before working capital changes 7,799,991 4,103,998
Changes in working capital
- Trade and other receivables (5,298,484) 46,457
- Advances and prepayments (428,815) (208,334)
- Inventories 1,972,436 (1,632,398)
- Work-in-progress (12,308,060) 208,493
- Trade and other payables 4,283,586 (5,000,764)
- Deposit and advance 8,083,782 -
- Provisions 1,239,413 649,607
- Accrued expenses - 4,088,660
Cash generated from operation 5,343,849 2,255,719
Interest received 121,647 100,109
Income taxes paid (1,450,000) (520,617)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,015,496 1,835,211
Cash flows from investing activities
Sale proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,325 -
Additions to investment properties (21,197) (936,512)
Additions to property, plant and equipment (5,745,869) (2,232,554)
Additions to intangible assets (1,700) -
Net cash used in investing activities (5,766,441) (3,169,066)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from advance receive for right issue 1,687,127 1,559,002
Proceed from borrowing 2,500,000 2,500,000
Repayment of borrowing (361,408) -
Dividend paid to shareholders (2,778,238) (2,575,987)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,047,481 1,483,015
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (703,464) 149,160
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,255,896 3,106,736
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9 2,552,432 3,255,896

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.



MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

1. General information

Myanmar Agro Exchange Public Company Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated as a
public company in the Republic of the Union of Myanmar under The Myanmar Companies Law
on September 14, 2015. The Company’s registration certificate issued by the Ministry of
National Planning and Economic Development was 1789/2015-2016 dated 14 September 2015.
As per certificate of registration number 112387595, the Company has been re-registered with
the new Myanmar Companies Law.

The Company was established by eleven promoters for the purpose of developing and managing
Danyingone Wholesale Market. Danyingone Wholesale Market is located at the Corner of Shwe
Pyi Thar Bridge Road and Palae Road in Insein Township. In early 2015, Dagon International
Limited (DIL) participates in submitting the tender for construction and management of
Danyingone Wholesale Market along with other bidders. DIL was awarded the tender on 31
March 2015 by Yangon Regional Government and Yangon City Development Committee
(YCDC). One of the tender conditions and commitments given by DIL was that the project will
be carried out through a project company which is a public company in nature and will hold
45% interest in such Public company as a promoter/founder, hence the creation of Myanmar
Agro Exchange Public Company Limited. After incorporation, DIL was appointed as the main
construction contractor for the Danyingone Wholesale Market construction to meet the tender
condition clause 5(a), 16 of Yangon Regional Government,

The Company has leased a plot of land of 82.78 acres from Yangon Region Government, YCDC,
for 50 years initially with an extended period of 20 years for constructing of Danyingone
Wholesale Market. After the completion of the main market building, the Wholesale Market
shall be opened and the Company will manage the overall administration of the Market
according to the terms of the land lease agreement.

The registered office of the Company is No. 262-264, Pyay Road, Dagon Centre, Block (A), 4%
Floor, Myaynigone, Sanchaung Township, Yangon Region, Myanmar.

The Company obtained permit from Myanmar Investment Commission on 25 June 2018 and
accordingly entitled to receive income tax exemption starting by that date and it was expired on
June 2021.
The Company has been approved to be listed with the Yangon Stock Exchange (Main Board) on
12 June 2023. The listing date of the Company was 3 July 2023. After that, the Company needs
to pay corporate income tax of 17% only.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies which have been applied consistently throughout the financial
years are summarized below:

A Basis of preparation
The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with

Myanmar Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs) and have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

-10-
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
B Foreign currency translation
(1) Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Kyat, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. F oreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income
statement.

C Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or capital appreciation (or both).
Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed,
and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are included
in profit or loss when the changes arise.

The cost of major renovations and improvements is capitalized and the carrying amounts of the
replaced components are recognized in profit or loss. The cost of maintenance, repair and minor
improvements is recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over
the estimated useful lives of fifty years.

On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss.

D Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to
recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes the cost of replacing part of property,
plant and equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an
asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals,
the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized
in the carrying amount of the property. plant and equipment as a replacement if the

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred. '

L.
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

D Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line methods to
allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful lives (years

Furniture and fittings 3
Office equipment 2-3
Motor vehicle 5
MPT phone line 5
Office building 45.25
Car parking control system 3
Steel lamp & accessories 5
Modular House 3
Site equipment 3
Solar Power System 16
Development cost 50

E Intangible asset

An item of intangible asset is stated at cost less any amortization and allowance for value (if any)
except for goodwill which is considered to have an indefinite life.

The amortization method is on the straight-line basis.

Estimated useful lives
Market operation system 3 years
E commerce system 3 years

F Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand and deposits with various local banks.

G Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out method. The costs of finished goods and work-in-progress comprise raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity) and borrowing costs. Cost also includes any gains or losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and applicable variable selling expenses.

H Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Appropriate

allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

s
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
I Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is calculated by applying income tax on deductible temporary difference, arrived at
upon deducting the currying value from tax base amount of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax relate to the same fiscal authority.

I Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

K Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

L Share capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

M Dividends
Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognized when they become legally payable.
N Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid
to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

O Revenue
The recognition of revenue is as follows:
(i) For the sale of Shop Houses, revenue is recognized when the construction is 80% and

above completed or more than 80% of the sales value has been received from the buyer.

(i) For the medium-sized wholesale units, revenue is recognized using the percentage of
completion method.

(iii) For the rest, revenue is recorded on an accrual basis. Sales comprise the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services in the
ordinary course of the Company’s activities.

=L T
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
P Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation
in the current year.

3. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses) assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of
each reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in the future periods.

4. Financial risk management

The Company’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources
are available for the development of the Company’s business whilst managing its risks. The main
areas of financial risks faced by the Company and the policy in respect of these risks are set out as
follows:

(a) Foreign exchange risk
There is no foreign exchange risk during the reporting period. The Company had minimized
the foreign currency balance in bank to avoid from unexpected losses for the foreign exchange
rate fluctuations.

(b) Credit risk
There are carrying amount of bank deposits, other receivables, prepayment and deposits
included in the financial statements of the company. However, the Company had made

necessary arrangement by laying down policy so that risk is at a minimum.

(c) Market risk

The Company is operating in Yangon and there is no impact of movement in foreign market
risk.

(d) Liquidity and cash flow risks
The Company monitors and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate by the
directors to finance the operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flow.
5. Capital management
The Company’s capital management major objective is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and working capital ratios to support its business developments and maximize shareholder

value.

The Company manages its capital structures and ensures that it meets its financial obligations as
they fall due.



MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

6. Investment properties

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year 13,002,175 11,885,865
Additions 21,197 936,512
Reclassification — 179,798
Balance at end of the year 13,023,372 13,002,175
dccumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at beginning of the year 1,183,034 924,229
Depreciation for the year 275,608 258,805
Balance at end of the year 1,458,642 1,183,034
Net book value 11,564,730 11,819,141

Investment properties are rented to non-related parties.
Bank borrowing is secured on investment properties (buildings) of the Company (Note 16).

The following amounts are recognized in the income statement:

2024 2023

MMK’000 MMK’000

Rental income (Note 21) 5,495,329 4,783,277
Direct operating expense assigning from:

- investment properties that generate rental income (Note 23) 427,332 347,049

- investment properties that do not generate rental income - -

The term of the contract between the Company and YCDC is fifty years, first extension period is
ten years and second is ten years, and the buildings are to be transferred to YCDC at the expired
date. Therefore, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization.
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MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

8. Intangible asset

Market operation E commerce Total
system system
MMK’000 MMK’000 MMEK’000
Cost
At 1 April 2023 113,718 3,139 116,857
Additions 1,700 - 1,700
At 31 March 2024 115,418 3,139 118,557
Accumulated amortization and
impairment losses
At 1 April 2023 67,826 2,769 70,595
Amortization 28,192 370 28,562
At 31 March 2024 96,018 3,139 99,157
Net book value
At 31 March 2024 19,400 - 19,400
Cost
At 1 April 2022 113,718 3,139 116,857
Additions - — =
At 31 March 2023 113,718 3,139 116,857
Accumulated amortization and
impairment losses
At 1 April 2022 38,433 1,722 40,155
Amortization 29,393 1,047 30,440
At 31 March 2023 67,826 2,769 70,595
Net book value
At 31 March 2023 45,892 370 46,262
9. Cash and cash equivalents
2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
Cash in hand 293,922 176,966
Cash at banks* 2,258,510 3,078,930
2,552,432 3,255,896

* Cash at banks include bank guarantee amounting to MMK 150,000,000 at United Amara Bank
(2023: MMK 150,000,000 at United Amara Bank).



MAEX'S ANNUAL REPORT
2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

10. Trade and other receivables

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMEK’000
Trade receivables
- Related parties {Note 27 (a)} - 91.337
- Non related parties 7,027,767 1,714,454
Other receivables
- Related parties {Note 27 (b)} 4,445 2,908
- Non related parties 81,035 8,290
Accrued interest income 8,805 6.579
7,122,052 1,823,568
11. Advances and prepayments
2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
Prepayments 18.451 20,703
Other advances & project cost 868,049 563,681
Advance income tax 1,221,245 525,013
Advance commercial tax 600,151 473,453
2,707,896 1,582,850 ol
12. Imventories
2024 2023
MMK?*000 MMK’000
Shop house - 1,957,051
Consumable inventories 79,913 95,298
79,913 2,052,349
13. Work-in-progress
2024 2023
MMEK’000 MMK’000
Infrastructure and others 4,366,813 1,062,485
Construction contract {Note 27 (a & b)} 11,735,516 1,838,284
Advance steel structure
- Related parties {Note 27 (a)} 895,500

- Non related parties 2,000 =
16,104,329 3,796,269

18
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MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

14. Income taxes

(a) Income tax expense

2024 2023
MMEK’000 MMK’000
Tax provision for the year 1,214,735 791,481

Adjustments in respect of prior year (4,312) -
Deferred income tax {Note 14(b)} (38,216) (33,400)

1,172,207 758,081

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown on the financial
position as follows:

Investment  Property, plant Total

properties  and equipment
MMK’000 MMK’000 MMK’000
Balance at 1 April 2023 - 33,400 33,400
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss — 38,216 38,216
Balance at 31 March 2024 - 71,616 71,616
Balance at 31 March 2023 - 33,400 33,400

15. Share capital

Number of shares MMK?000
At 1 April 2023 21,640,860 21,753,001
Additions 2,164,086 3,246,129
At 31 March 2024 23,804,946 24,999,130
At 1 April 2022 21,640,860 21,753,001
Additions = =
At 31 March 2023 21,640,860 21,753,001

Additional shares were allotted on 5 June 2023. Yangon Stock Exchange permitted the Company
to be a listed company on 3 July 2023. The market price of the share as at 29.3.2024 was Kyat

1,800 per share.

16. Borrowing

Beginning of the financial year
Borrowing during the year
Repayment during the year

End of the financial year

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
2,500,000 -
2,500,000 2,500,000
(361,408) =
4,638,592 2,500,000
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2023-2024

MYANMAR AGRO EXCHANGE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

16. Borrowing (continued)

During the financial year, an additional loan of kyat 2,500,000,000 was acquired. The loan shall
be used for working capital requirements and the amount shall be classified as non-current
liabilities. The loan has been fully secured by investment property (Building). Interest 10% p-a.
shall be calculated on the outstanding balance and shall be recognized as expenses in the statement
of comprehensive income. The loan agreement has been entered into on 20 January 2023 and the
repayment period is until 5 November 2026. (2023: MMK 2,500,000,000) (Note 6)

17. Trade and other payables

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000

Trade payables
- Related parties {Note 27 (a)} 3,962,459 656,357

Other payables
- Related parties {Note 27 (c)} 9,600 3,000
- Non-related parties 1,690,006 733,596
Dividend payables 263,558 185,203
5,925,623 1,578,156

18. Deposit and advances
2024 2023
MMK'’000 MMK’000
Deposit 854,933 -
Advances from contract with customer

- Related parties {Note 27 (a)} 226,550 -
- Non-related parties 7,245,300 243,000
8,326,783 243,000

19. Provisions/Share of profit to YCDC

2024 2023

MMK’000 MMK’000

Provision for commercial tax 101,244 11,043
Provision for income tax 1,248,135 791,481
Provision for YCDC * 2,309,013 1,159,801
3,658,392 1,962,325

* Provision is made in accordance with the agreement between the Company and YCDC which
describes that YCDC is entitled to receive 25% of net profit before income tax from rents and
sales of the remaining 80% of shop houses.
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19. Provisions/Share of profit to YCDC (continued)

The details are as follows:

Revenue - net

Sale of shop house

Rental income

Right of self-construction SH
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Expenses

- General and administrative
- Marketing

- Finance

Net profit before income tax *
Share of YCDC (25%)

2024 2023
MMK?000 MMK’000
18,848,244 8,956,252

5,312,055 4,619,576
- 4,333,333
(11,808,410)  (11,634,557)
12,351,889 6,274,604
261,645 271,590
(2,777,605) (1,878,551)
(124,040) (17,730)
(475,838) (10,709)
9,236,051 4,639,204
2,309,013 1,159,801

* Net profit before income tax excludes revenue, cost of sales and related expenses from online
sales of meat, fish and vegetables which are shown in details as follows:

Revenue-net

Income from e-commerce (Note 21)

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Expenses

- General and administrative
- Marketing

- Finance

Net loss

20. Accrued expenses

Accrued construction cost
Accrued infrastructure cost
Accrued earth and sand filling

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
235,454 51,263
(212,274) (49,760)
23,180 1,503
30 =
(28,352) (33,869)
(1,193) (1,215)
(6,335) (33,581)
2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
3,523,334 3,523,334
365,326 365,326
200,000 200,000
4,088,660 4,088,660
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21. Revenue - net

2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
Revenue
Sale of shop house and medium wholesale
- Non related parties 18,934,641 9,224,940
- Related parties {Note 27 (a)} 479,050 -
19,413,691 9,224,940
Less: Commercial tax (3%) (565,447) (268,687)
18,848,244 8,956,253
Right of self-construction SH — 4,550,000
Less: Commercial tax (5%) - (216,667)
— 4,333,333
Rental income (Note 6) 5,495,329 4,783,277
Less: Commercial tax (5%) (183,274) (163,702)
5,312,055 4,619,575
E commerce (Note 19) 235,454 51,263
235,454 51,263
24,395,753 17,960,424
22. Other income
2024 2023
MMK’000 MMK’000
Interest income 121,647 100,109
Miscellaneous receipt from market 140,028 171,481

261,675 271,590
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23. Expenses by nature

The total of cost of sales, general and administrative expenses, marketing expenses and finance
expenses are as follows:

2024 2023
MMK'000 MMK’000
Construction cost 10,569,568 6,533,257
Cost of right of self-construction - 4,088,660
Service charges for rental (Note 6) 427.332 347,049
E commerce charges 212,274 49,760
Depreciation and amortization 1,002,553 758,286
Professional fees 60,453 41,000
Audit fees 30,200 32,193
Miscellaneous 647,835 392,704
Salary & benefit 903,185 733,459
Key management personnel and director remuneration
{Note 27 (c)} 177,339 159,398
Honorarium fees {Note 27 (c)} 66,000 39,000
Director bonus {Note 27 (c)} 40,000 42,000
Securities service fee 195,613 163,976
Utilities 125,908 122,521
Insurance 50,443 57,287
Marketing & promotion 125,233 18,945
Listing cost 321,809 35,548
Exchange gain (2,253) (21,561)
Finance expenses 475,838 10,709
Other taxes - 22,201
Gain on disposal (1,617) -
15,427,713 13,626,392
24, Dividend
2024 2023
Number of shares (in thousands) 23,804,946 21,640,860
Dividend per share (MMK) 120 120
Total (Kyat in thousands) 2,856,593 2,596,903

The Company declared a dividend of 120 kyat per share for the 2022-2023 financial year at the
7th Annual General Meeting.
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25. Significant commitments and obligations

The Company has appointed DIL as its main construction- contractor in order that the terms and
conditions of tender para 5(A) 16 could be fulfilled. The Company has signed a contract of land

lease on 22 March 2016 to pay the following benefits:

1. Contract with YCDC

The Company has executed land lease agreement with the following rights:
e To give to YCDC 20% of 200 shop house to which 40 (shop house including large broker

house, living quarters, offices);

e After the business has started, to pay an amount equal to 25% of profit before tax from rents
and sales of the remaining 80% of shop houses, shops, medium-sized wholesale shops and

gasoline shops.

2. Contract with DIL

(a) The Company has contracted DIL to construct of Danyingone Wholesale Market in order

to fulfill the terms and conditions of tender para 5(A) 16;

(b) The Company has signed agreements with DIL to set off its contributions, 45% of second
right issue 450,000 shares and 35,000 of public offering 500,000 shares, against cost of
Danyingone Wholesale Market construction on 31 October 2016 and 30 March 2017

respectively.

26. Earnings per share

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
(Kyat in thousands)
Total number of common shares outstanding as on reporting
date (in thousands)

Basic earnings per share (Kyat per share)

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
(Kyat in thousands)

The sum of the weighted average number of shares
outstanding and dilutive shares (in thousands)

Diluted earnings per share (Kyat per share)

2024 2023
5,748,495 2,687,740
23,805 21,640
241 124
5,748,495 2,687,740
23,444 21,640
245 124
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27. Related party transactions

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
transactions took place between the Company and the related parties at terms agreed between the

parties;

(a) Sales and purchases of goods and services

Transactions value Balance

for the year ended outstanding as at

31 March 2024 31 March 2024

MMK’000 MMK’000

Advance construction contract — DIL (Note 13) 9,907,231 11,730,516

Advance construction contract — DCL (Note 13) 895,500 -

Payable construction contract - DIL (Note 17) 3,327,931 3,962,459

Advance received (Note 18 & 21) 479,050 226,550

Transactions value Balance

for the year ended outstanding as at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023

MMK’000 MMK’000

Advance construction contract — DIL (Note 13) 1,047,990 1,838,284

Advance construction contract — DCL (Note 13) 895,500 895,500

Payable construction contract - DIL (Note 17) 327,632 656,357
Shop house sales to director and executive officer

(Note 10) — 91,337

(b) Other

Transactions value Balance

for the year ended outstanding as at

31 March 2024 31 March 2024

MMEK’000 MMK’000

Meter bill paid on behalf of DIL (Note 10) 1,586 4,445

Insurance for shop house (Note 13) 10,000 5,000

Transactions value Balance

for the yearended  outstanding as at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023

MMK’000 MMK’000

Meter bill paid on behalf of DIL (Note 10) 362 2,908

Insurance for shop house (Note 13)
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27. Related party transactions (continued)

(c) Key management personnel and director remuneration

Transactions value Balance

for the year ended outstanding as at

31 March 2024 31 March 2024

MMK’000 MMK’000

Remuneration (Note 23) 177,339 -
Honorarium fees (Note 23 & 17) 66,000 9,600
Director bonus (Note 23) 40,000 -
Transactions value Balance

for the year ended  outstanding as at

31 March 2023 31 March 2023

MMK’000 MMK’000

Remuneration (Note 23) 159,398 -
Honorarium fees (Note 23 & 17) 39,000 3,000
Director bonus (Note 23) 42,000 -

(d) Agreement between related parties (Note 25.2)
DIL was selected as the major contractor as it was awarded the winner by Tender Selection
Committee of Yangon Region Government among other tender bidders’ participants to develop
and manage Danyingone project.
28. Authorization of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized for
issue, in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, on 21 June 2024,
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